STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for March 15, 2016

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

4. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/26/16 for $382,147.31, date 02/29/16 for
$2,698.67 and date 3/04/16 for $121,997.52 and $75,404.04. Accounts Payable Checks date
03/4/16 for $519,398.53 and $5,970.31.

5. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for February 2016

1




6. Correspondence:
A. Monthly report from Storey County Fire Protection District

7. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. 3D CONCRETE, INC, - Mining/ 655 Peru Drive TRI
B. FRANK M. BOOTH - Contractor / 222 Third St. ~ Marysville, CA (contractor)
C. HORROCKS ENGINEERS, INC. - Contractor / 2162 W.Grove Pkwy. 5te.400 ~ Pleasant
Grove , UT (Consultant Civil Engineering Services)
D. RED HAWK FIRE & SECURITY - Contractor / 5100 Town Center Circle Ste 350 ~
Freemont, CA
(Fire and Life Safety)
E. SUNSTATE EQUIPMEMENT CO., LLC - Contractor / 5552 E Washington St. ~ Phoenix,
CA (Deliveries, Construction equipment rentals)
F. SYNERGY CONSTRUCTION, LLC. - Contractor / 4730 S Ft. Apache Rd Ste.300 ~ Las
Vegas, NV (Construction )
G. NEFAB PACKING WEST, LLC - Contractor / 8477 Central Ave ~ Newark, CA
(manufacturing)
H. DAMON INDUSTRIES dba Service World ~ General / 822 Packer Way ~ Sparks (Juice
Sales & Service)
. ADAMS & GARTH, INC. - General /7130 Glen Forest Dr. Ste.110 ~ Richmond , VA
(Staffing & Recruiting)
AIRGAS USA, LLC - Contractor / 3737 Worsham Ave ~ Long Beach, CA (welding
Supplies, medical Supplies )
REDS FIRE & FLOOD - Contractor / 2410 Walnut St ~ Reno {Construction Repair)
TESLA MOTORS NV, INC. - General / 420 USA Pkwy. ~ (Service Electrical Motors)TRI
. PRODUCTION INNOVATION - General / 287 Belblossom Way ~ Los Gatos, CA (Sales &
Consulting.)
EC COMPANY -- Contractor / PO Box 10286 ~ Portland, OR (Construction & Resale of
Generators )

=R

z

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

8. DISCUSSION ONLY {No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

10. DISCUSSION ONLY: Presentation from Gregg Jones, President and CEO of EP Minerals.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Public Hearing to consider approval of Resolution 16-436
authorizing the lease of County property located at 1705 Peru Drive to Ames Construction, Inc.

*This item will be heard at 10:30am

RECESS AS BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO CONVENE STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 16-435
establishing a Capital Projects Fund for the Storey County Fire Protection District.




ADJOURN AS STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD TO RECONVENE
AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consider approval of Memorandum of Understating with
Nevada Department of Taxation and Nevada Tax Commission to authorize Storey County
Officials to review records of Department of Taxation to determine whether there has been a
proper reporting of transactions subject to sales and use taxes within Storey County.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance No. 15-267 amending Storey
County Code Title 8 Health and Human Safety by adding chapter 8.01 Nuisances and providing
a uniform process for abating all the different nuisance complaints in the code. The amendment
also changes the existing nuisance procedures in other parts of the Code to be consistent with the
new chapter and provides for other properly related matters.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
15. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A,

B

C.

D.

M

L@

—_

gER T

z

v Qo

DESERT VALLEY DENTAL OF TRI, INC. - General /420 USA Parkway TRI
WESTERN PARTITIONS, INC. - Contractor / 8300 SW Hunziker Road ~ Tigard, OR
(contractor) ,
ROLLING PLAINS CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 12331 North Peoria St. ~

Henderson, CO (fireproofing contractor)

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEVADA, LLC - Contractor / 3078 East Sunset Road ~ Las Vegas
(elect cont.)

MEDIC ELECTRIC, LI.C - Contractor / PO Box 612 ~ Sparks (residential contractor)
ERGOMAT, INC. - Contractor / 7469 Industrial Pkwy ~ Avon Lake, OH (installation of
fatigue matting)

MARTIN HARRIS CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 3030 South Highland ~ Las
Vegas (contractor)

BORGES ARCHITECTURAL GROUP - Contractor / 1478 Stone Point Dr ~ Roseville, CA
(architectural)

COLOG, INC. - Contractor / 810 Quail Street ~ Lakewood, CO

(geophysical/ hydrophysical services)

ITEM WEST, LLC - Contractor / 9725 South 500 West ~ Sandy, UT (manufacturing
solutions)

EDAX, INC. - Contractor / 91 McKee Drive ~ Mahwah, NJ (equipment manufacturing)
FRIENDLY PLUMBING, INC. ~ Contractor / 1744 C Street ~ Sparks (plumbing contractor)

. APOLLO SHEET METAL, INC. - Contractor / 1207 West Columbia ~ Kennewick, WA

(mech. Cont.) .
FUTURE ELECTRONICS, CORP., -- Contractor / 237 Hymus Blvd ~ Pointe-Claire
CANADA (electronics distributor/ installer)

. ICG CONSTRUCTION, LLC ~ Contractor / 500 Ryland ~ Reno {concrete contractor)

GEOTEMTPS, INC. - General / 970 Caughlin Xing ~ Reno (Staffing solutions)

16. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

17. ADJOURNMENT




18. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION - Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations with the Storey County Employees Association/ AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be Limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at {202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.




USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada §9440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before March 10, 2016; Virginia
City Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 27 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV. |

oy 00 dtd B hosoh

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 15, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required | ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/26/16 for $382,147.31, date
02/29/16 for $2,698.67 and date 3/04/16 for $121,997.52 and $75,404.04. Accounts
Payable Checks date 03/4/16 for $519,398.53 and $5,970.31.

2. Recommended motion; Approval of claims as submiited.
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

VS Department Head Department Name: Comptroiler
wa Manager Other agency review: .

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

-
bomird ed

Agenda Item No. 4 ’




HEUENSYHEEL

HITIOELIWNOD
HENOISSTHWNOD HANOISS TWWOD NYWIIVHD
ISIDUOTSSTWWOD JO pIeved Ajuno) Asxoss syl Aq paacaddy
1€ LPT EBE 1 pesINYS T
Z¥"TZ6'8E 11030Npag 07 IAIFSUBRAL IdS0
9v'9LE’'s iaTtg dog ITQ uo pasgy spaa 2adkorduz
T LPT'G9E i31sodag 3joextg osadordug
28 Z2TI0'T rgyoayn ovloTdug
£8°806'8 iBYPeYD Iojonpad
0%°08L'98 FGdLdd A9z ADIsUBRIL IS5
Junowy saled # poa
/# dug
& & L 9 S ¥ £ g 1 ‘:sdnoan [loxded
9T/18/80 *@&3eq pud-potTIag 9T/92/20 o3ea 32ayd geTnbBey :edil 11oIdRg
AMYNIWITEHA as3sthey oaud

i

abedg

WALSAS TIOUAYd AINNCD AHHQLS

1e30L

Te10s
TeloL
Te10l
Te30L
Te30L

T230L

# aa
/¥o2un

BOEE:60 9T/¥Z/Z0 unyd

YOTS0ud :3day




HHANSVILL

I TTOALINOD

HENQISSIHROD JANCISSIHWCD NYHATYHD

PSIJUATEETWIOD Jo preod Ajunod Asxoqs syl Ag pasoxddy

£9°869°C IpRsInNgSTad Tel10L
68°89F 1IA030NPRg 07 ISI5UBIL 1950 TRIOL
00" o114 deg x1g U0 pasyx spag 23dorduy {wacs
oo’ iatsoded aoe1tg eafoTdum rejor
95°'919'T reysayy ssAoTdud telol
[H1ee {8YD8YD ICIDUPES [wIA0L
ZZ°ET9 ‘5dJd3 I0F I8JSURIL IS TEIOL
Junowy asieqd  # psa # qa
/# dur  /yosud
cednoaxyn [ToIARg
91/%z/20 :83eQ pua-potiad 9T/6E/20 123vQ O3UD tetoads adiAl 1Toxkeq
AUVYNTWITIIL aa3s1Bay Aoaud FOI8¥I0T ¢1/62/20 uny

4

sbeg

WELSAS TIQWAVd ALNNCD XAHHEOLS VOT50dd :adey



HIENETEEL

HETICHLANWCD

HINOISSIWWOO HINOISSTHWOD NYWIIYHD

PSISUCTESFTUWED Jo paeod Ajuno) Aaxolg oyl Ag poaasoaddy

Z5'L66'T2T ISYOBHD IOIFTPSA TEISL
an’ :gdldd I03 I9ISUEIL IISH TeI0L
JUNOoWY sahied  # pad # 4a
/H quwd /oeyd
21/¥0/E0 33eg YD9YD Jojonpag :adAl TToxAed
TYNIA I9as1bey yoay)d 91:0%°0T7 9T1/%0/€0 :unyg

Z abeq WALSAS TICHAVd ALNNOD AHUOLS Y0OTS0dd :3dan




INNIA
4

abeg

UEINCISSIWHCD

HEANSVHEL

HHTTICALIWOD

HANOISS ITHNOD

NVIWYIVHD

PBIDUOTSSTUWOD JO pIeod Ajuno) Aaxolg ayl Aq pascaddy

PO FOF’SL

oo-

Junowy

9T/P0/€0 “33BA Y0OUD

Ie3s1bay yoayp
WALSAS TTIOHAYd ALNNOD AHAQLS

1SY0AYD I0j30Mpag TeIoL

PSdLAd 0] X®jFsuesl I9S[ TRIOL

aaked # pag # aa
J# dug  Syoeyn

xogonpad :edArn 1roaded

TSF€S70T 9T/%0/€0 unyg
Yoisodd :adey




FHANSYHARL NOS¥YD S0 ALID 168%8

YETLE P8 LY GE6SL 9L/ PO /K PLIZET ON 1SND
05" 6% BEBSL 9T/ %0/t
ATddS AMVLINYS TYELNTED 068%8
¥ TII8'1 TO 0% S66SL 9T/%0/¢€ HNOHd SHHNH
0L 08 DZo9L ST/FO/E TIED a¥El LI
T0 0% SEESL 91/%0/¢ NALLIHM 208S-£%% SLL
DS"0ES'T ET6SL 9T1/%0/¢ a¥dI TO000-290E9EELL
T0 0¥ 9TOSL 91/%¥0/¢ 9T/ IJIM €66FT009L64 ANI
008 LEGSL 9T/%0/¢ 68979C09L6 ANT
dIHSYANLIYE ODTTED [3:F:500]
15°0%6°T ST LOT'T ZI6SL 91/%0/¢ ISA B INO -Md
JEEEN ZIGSL 91/%0/¢ 80 ® INN-Md
OHNI 0D TIO AETIVA NOSHYD EEERE]
LL EEE -0L4'9 T165L 3T/%0/€ LIGIAD
00°¥ZT TTI6SL 91/%0/¢ THHd ¥ITIZ-S079Sd0HS
08" €% TT64L 9T/¥0/E HSCH -%2Z8%Md
8L L6 TI6SL 9T/ %0/E HALTIIL~MD0LS
68'¥6 TIGSL ST/¥0/€ HOSHES SEY-ATCWOD
SI¥Yd OLOY ALID TYIIYD L8878
00 99¢ 00 9¢ 8EESL aT/%0/¢
00" 0EE 8EESL 9T/%0/¢€ 310Z "%¥2-11 €44
SIMAT LIODS ‘TIEdEnd 98878
00 000 'QET 00°000"0FT 066SL 91/ %0/¢ JHAAYT 155 F0CZ
HEId NIVINOOW HETANIY¥E 588%8
0009 0009 L009L 9T/%0/¢€ NOILVELSNIWOY DITdnd
G TIASSOY ' NOANTHI ¥E8BTE
[4: 2 2-n 98 12T 6LEGL aT/v¥0/t SHITAANS ANIIDAH HANINIWZA
9% f£E GLESL 9T /B0n/t SAITIANS ANATOAH ININIWII
DNI XNYAWOD HENNVE 408 £88%8
0oTosE 00°09¢g BEESL 3T/H0/¢E TIVISNI ¥ WYdD0dd OIavd
DT INIOQEADYIE £88%8
00°5es 00°SES 9565L 91/%0/¢€ 5d0L FTAYL NIH WED
011 'SEOYWI ¥ SNOIS Lsdd T88%8
€1 0%E 00°66 0TESL 9T/%0/E SATHALIYE INTd HMIM
69°TT 0TESL 91/¥0/€ Y -d0HS
S6°8T DIESL ST/E0/E LHOITHEOM - S0P 9S30HS
6% 0€T 0T65L 9T/%0/E AMELIVE -HEONYH HduId
(ONEN) SNTd SEIYALLIYE 088%8
00069 00° 069 1865L 9L/v0/% LMY ' IELEY.LS -9ANILDES
JNI'OIELDETE ¥INUL 2 OLNY £L8Y8
¥S°Z09 DLTOFT FBESL 9T/%0/€ AIALEYD
E0°68E 9P6SL 9L/¥0/¢€ TYOISAHd HIIWS
5L T4 9¥ESL 91/%0/¢€ NOLLYINDONTI SIMET
SSENTIEM dNY HIJIVEH Ddv BLBFE
PETEEL vE'EET LEGSL 9T/%0/% SS6€0T02 LDV
d1 HNYdO¥d SYOSINIWY LLBTB
69 TLZ 64705 60652 9T/%0/€ dOHS
89°'5% G06S5L IT/%0/¢ dous
0E'LE 6065L 9T/%0/¢ HD
08" LE 60654 9IT/%0/¢€ o
ZS 0T S965L4 9T/¥0/€ A¥ANNYT ¥L 1S
Z5'01 S965L AT/ P0/E AMANOYT SL IS
LL 8 S9E5L 91/%0/¢ AMONAYT 2L LS
09°0T 5965L 3T/%0/€ AAANOYT TL 1S
DHI Q28T1Y 9LBYH
TEIOL LNOCKHY HENYEL HIWA # 0/4 NOILATIHOSAd EDICANT dOaANAn HHIWAN
A2dH2 AOFHD
9T/¥0/€ WALSIDEY JNDIHD 9T/E0/ED ¢ 23BO uny

abed ALNNCD ARMOLS STETEd :ON 3xodsy

v B




Z

897 ¥eE9

98 EBB'T

G4L°09E°g

05" 2%L

0T €58
007 4¥%E
9E BT GEET

GETE0S'T

00 ¥8¥

L8 E56

00 05T
006l

5% 69¢€

€17 €8
Q07008

05°¥%#TIE

EETEEBTT

FETLY
00°000°ST

IY.LOL
ADdHD

sbeq

89°%Z9

18 %212
-S6°0%2

Z0 HER'E
€L79%6°T
00" 06
057259

0T €59

00" L¥E

9L ¥6T'6ET

E9 08T T
L8 ZSE

00" ¥6¥%

S¥'B8
FETEWS
097 LE
FPSUERL
o00'te
7665

00 0ST
g0 6L
S6°G¢
06" 1S
SgTee
§6° 8¢
S6°0¢
§56°9¢
S6'0€
56" EL
17 E8
00°00%

00784
0S'9€ET

gL €€l IT
007 00T

PETLT

00 000°ST

LNOCHY

6¥6SsL

6Z6S5L
6Z6SL

8¥654L
B8¥6SL

¥e6S5L
Ye6SL

91654
CLESL
ooooL

S¥&6SL
SLESL

£009L

STESL
ST6SL
ST&5¢L
S168L
ST65L
ST65L

Pi65L
SE65L
CEDSL
TL6SL
FLESL
50084
Ti6SL
TLESL
TieSL
TL6SL
96654
62094

09&65L
0965L

TZesL
£T0SL

0B6SL
£965L

H#ONVEL

91/¥0/€

9T/¥0/€
91/%0/¢€

9T/%0/¢€
9T/%0/E

9T/%0/¢
91/%0/¢€

ST/P0/E
3T/¥0/E
eT/¥0/€E

91/%0/€E
ST/%0/€

9T/%0/¢

ST/¥0/F
$T/P0/E
$T/50/€
ST/v0/E
ST/¥0/E
9T/¥0/E

91/%0/¢
9T/¥0/%
9T/¥0/%
91/%0/¢
9T/¥0/€
9T/¥%0/%
9T/%0/€
9L/%0/%
9T/%0/¢
9T/¥0/%
9T/%0/¢
9T/%0/€

9L/¥0/€
9T/%0/¢

9TL/P0/E
9T/¥0/€

9T/%0/¢€
9T/%0/¢

dI¥d

9L/%0/€

SEITddNS SKE

HELFWIATENOL
HAQULIATE Hd NOINO

HUOEYT INYHEDENS TaNA
YOHAYT LNVHDENS THNA

< XS¥
0S°PT XS¥

T8d 3 OHI-MWT
IYAH/HI¥-S0LT HOLIMS
dINdd HS00T ¥ THOD IDoOUL

ANYTIE dLM
ANY3OHd

LIAONY ANIT SHIVATd 2SI

Sd¥¢ THA-T00990S
HOH-0LDH

TIO -&I

LT1HA4 * ZETINE - S0P 95J0HS
TIO-ADQLS

0T Tdd-AJ0LS

DILSONDVIQ -E298TSdd
AULNEDIAMADZT HINYYE I¥Ad 008
TYLNIY MATO0Z ATHINOW
UALVM INIAT -HD
STYINTI ¥AT00S dHL¥M
9T0C HOUVH

HULYM SL LS

ddLYM vL 1S

ddLYM TL 18

ddIYM 24 IS

ST/0E/0T 'Ivd (JIVdNO
LHEIES S A¥YW C LS

NOTIWZITYN0E 40 qdEY0d
SYHAYAXYL OL dDILON

LH0daNns WWEH0dd 9TOZHDUYH

JASYNESIT INIWHS INEYD
9T0% ‘910% ‘¥T0T

NOILATHISHET FDIOANT

HJALSIDIY ADIHD
ALNOCD AZHOLIS

DNIDYWIOHDIW LYESEA HOIH

NIHHDS XUNEH

QLT LNIVI TIDYd XT1ddNS dH

aiT ‘IvH

WOL ' KUIESNTHD
DT ADNENH SHALTI
"YOONI dIV 3 ONTLVYIH LAATd

IAYNLS ‘ NINEAYE

d1 SYDTTIHEAL

DT 'SNOILYDINOWWOD 224

SNI A1ddns OLNY LLOITIH
ONT ‘TIASHIC DIMWNAD

ROILVAOJEWOD §4d HSIA

ONI ¥50 SHOIVA
SNOILLOTIOS 509 JdSH 004502

T1 SCIGNLES ZTACKW ADIQLSHOD

(DA} HTDINOHHD MDOLSWOD

GONI LSHHZ ALINMAWWOD

AN 40 HDTAYAS NOILLDETIOD

JOANAn

ST/EQ/ED
STE£TEd

1

Q16%8

606H8

806%8

L06%8

20698
S06%8
¥0e¥8

E0e¥8

[ ]

T06e®2

006%8
668%8

BEBY¥B

LEBYSB
268¥%8

S68F8

veava

£68¥8

[A-4:34]

HIGWON
HOHHD

ajeq uny

toN 3a0dey




£

00°69€
00 05E’S
26 81S
00°999°T
00" 99
GL ¥IS'T
00" 005" %
8E€°99%'S
P8 ZZL
9T €8T
¥8 L0
00'666°S
86 FT
00005
30008
60789
82 LEZT
29 €L
09928
58°¥8T
IYLOL
MDEHD
abrg

00'652
00°SLT
00°SET
00" 692
00 05%°9
6L LS
L6" 8¢

6 12
Qg7 102
£ 6LT
w0 ve
00°999'T
G0 ¥9

6L FIS’T
00" 005'%

8E IBT'E
00'582°'¢2

0E' 069
¥5'EE

ST 8T

gg-eget
?9° Sk

00°686°S
86 F%T
00008

66°€0%
80'96T

G085
gz’ LET
[4=RN AN
25' 0%
€8sz
PSTERE
257 LE
6E°E8T
S8 ¥81

LNOOWY

vz09L
veass
¥209L
LEBSL
S009L
££09L
c009L
¥96SL
LLGSL
19654
¥o09L
¥EZesL
Tv¥eSL
TZ094
LSBSL

0¥65L
0F6SL

TE09L
TE09L

05654

BLBSL
8LESL

8BESL
9265L
£C65L

AR
Zeoee

L2E6SL
6T6SEL
L1654
8I65L
8T68L
8T66L
8TesL
8T&5L
8Z09L

#SNYAL

9T/%0/¢
9T/¥%0/€
9T/¥%0/¢
9T/%0/¢€
9T/%0/€
9T/¥0/€
9T/%0/¢€
9L/%0/¢
9aT/v0/¢€
9T/¥%0/¢€
9L/%0/¢€
9T/¥0/€
91/%0/¢
91/¥%0/€
91L/¥%0/¢€

91/%0/¢
91/%0/¢

91/%0/¢
91/%0/¢

9T/%0/¢€

9T/¥0/€
9T/%0/%

9T/%0/%
9T/¥0/€
3T/%0/¢

3T/¥0/E
ST/¥0/E

ST/¥0/E
9t/%0/¢
91/%0/¢
9T/%0/%
9T/%0/¢
91/%0/¢
91/%0/¢
9T/%v0/¢
ar/v0/¢

Ji¥da

9T/ %0/t

ad

ARLONHD Lvd-dOHS

9T0Z AYONYL ¥0d ONITITH
SHITAANS D140

HAOTHAANE 6X9 ‘HOLVTINDTYD
SHITAdNS HDIAJO

SEIADILS ‘SHJOTIANT *HANOL
SYENILSYS 3 HANOL
3TOZAI-T4dANS

IH0ddNS WYED0Ed 3T0ZHOHEYKH
9102 "vZ-11 €Ed

WIEEd A0d Dd ¥a

ANYE HILISAO

IMNTHD NOOTIYS Qd ARG
JENIVLHEY HO¥YW

IYLNEd HI¥TLEN
X0aav¥n ¥xg00

SEIT44NS SHE

UHSENES5TA LNAWHS TNV
QISHAESId LNAWHS INAYD

YOS5HEdHOD
A¥d ¥OOTA~-dOHS
9TOZHOYUYN MHDISIO HLIVHH

2 X 5401 00S§T
IOQATING I¥L TINYd HOLVd

ANAATT d90 ddLEM

SN1Td 'I¥S-EHNITTLHOEd Md
0T AOT-TYAS-UENTTLHOEL
SUITIANS-S0LT SHNY
SHITAANS-50LT SEWNY
SHEIT4AN5-50LT SHWY
THAOWHET -WOCH NI SQLT
TEAOWEA WOO¥ NHEL S0LT
ZOS-SEEETTHN/OEE WITJ-DWI

NOTILITHOSII JDIOANT

HELSIOHE MOHHD
ALNNCD AE¥OLS

HITTOELANCD AHEN
SLEYd HONEL ¥ OLNY ¥d¥N

L LUEE0d STHE0H

NI SNCILOTCS EDIJAC CHLIW
LY ALLNNHWCD NIVMI HUWH
WOESOW NOISNYW XWADWH

ONI SEIHCLTHOYNET YN

D77 SINEIAE E0TId AIndit

277 SINIAE 3074 dIindIv

4T TYNOILYN NTIOONIT

ONT LSISSV-34I7

AI¥NOd SAWYL. HET
ILOALO¥Yd H¥TA ARTIVA HAVI
271 440

24N NYNNATOW O SaWW¥r

ST 42¥9n08 TLI
YNEEYA “ADINAH
A¥ES TYIYLSNANI JITTOYHdAH

QLI SONILLYA ¥ HSOH

ADIA¥ES LICHHED LOJIG TWOH

HOANIA

9T/E0/€0
STeTdd

0EelE

62678

82678

LZ6TE

9Z6%8

SE6T8

vZevg

£EZ26¥%8

A3 4]

T26%8

4zeve

6T6¥8

816¥%8

L16%8

91678

ST&¥8

71678

£leve

Zle¥g

11698

HIHRAN
ADEHD
238 uny

ioN 3xoday

»




P

00" 000"T
o0 00t
LS

cE" oL

TT LOZ'9

¥8TBET’'T
SLTLTIT
LETDOET'T
g0 eTE
00°008°T
00°8¢
00008
19°119°¢2
BT ETT

EL° 18

00°'SZE’T
00" 052
007002
0T"9t
00°0T
0070081

Qv 657

¥Lo9T
00 1¥9°2

TYLOL
MJEHD

abed

00°000'T
00°00¢
0L'S

0€' 0L
000081
00005
00" SLE
00000
TZ 2ES'T
BB BELT
SLULTT
L6°06T'T
00°21E
00°008°T
0082
00006
19°'119'¢C
8T €TT
LE LT
%021

ZL 1S
00°STE'T
00°0s5g
00°'00€
0T"9T
00707
00°00S°T
9% " T91
TL LT
£2°001
FL°9T
00'E80’'T

LNOQHY

Z665L
8565L
2E09L
CASETN
SEQSL
SEC9L
SEQ0SL
SE09L
tbesL
Z865L
LBGSL
c965L
0L6SL
TTO9L
[AZETA
£E65L
LEESL
£EB&SL
66654
LZOSL
£L209L
6565
80094
15654
PE09L
S209L
9E66L
[AR03-FN
€109L
AN
QT09L
peooL

¥SNWAL

9T/%0/€
9T/%0/¢€
ST/%0/€
9T/%0/¢€
ST/%0/¢
ST/%0/€
9T/%0/%
9T/%0/¢
91/%0/¢
91/%0/%
IT/¥0/E
9T/%0/€
9T/ P0/E
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/€
9T/%C¢/¢E
9T/%0/€
ST/%e/t
ST/%0/%
ST/70/€
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/¢
9T/%0/¢
T/¥0/€
9T/%0/€
9T/v0/€
sT/¥0/€
91/¥%0/€
9T/v0/€
91/%0/¢
9T/¥0/E

ALY

3T/F0/¢€

# 0/d

JALSIDEY

dIHSUOBNOAS ATTIVE OMINAS
HLIOWHT X

41T HHEILEY T0-69%EST IO
SEATIYLS ¥ads

ALNOOD WIGHAN

NID A¥ALEWID

SddA ESvWd Yivd

OL3IA

LEYTHH LNEAE

SE¥IL-0LOT

QESUNHESTA LNEWHS INEYD
LINIWAYd HSVAT

dOHS 14ID ¥04 57009

9T0% ‘%z-11 434

Ay AVMLY FOHYL ONY 94 %/7T
SAWYID 'SaNE 'HSOH -¥OLOVA
JasINgs1qa INAWHSINIYH
SNEd dNV SII¥ILLYE

HJ¥L

SHITGINS FDTIIQ

YMNYOr ‘Eudna

SENd TYNNN

SENC TYONNY LdEd

SLSOD PNIININA

SNYAH "T'HITIIH €'SHEMOE T

SHAQTIANE

WOD WSTHNCL ALID YINISHIA

NOILATHISHET HDIOANT

HDEHD

ALNOOD KHYOLS

QNI QDddnyd

ONI SMOHSUIVYOA

AZYOLINYEL HOHYLI ONIY

NI HATT JIVANYLS HONVITAH

(¥2) ONI 02 NYOUOW Avd

ONI SIISHIVILS avy

CD ¥HEHNY ¥ HATL TTEDE0d
I 0D FAONYNIA TYNOISSEACHA
(¥AT) TVEOTH SHAMOE AINLIA
LINYL ‘NOSHHIA

2d dW ¥SSITHW '¥DESYIA

I OTHONY 'INI¥LAL

ONI OLSHEd

SEIVYS INTWIINOH SNHMO

HONVNIA OLNY NODEMO

SONI LO4dd HDIJJ0

NIATIM ONY IAQON

JELINIT 20 SE2ANCL YA¥AIN
NSSY SJAFIHD HdTd YAVAEN

(ONY} QLT 40719 YaA¥AAN

ATAOSTHAL AHN

DOSEY dAL¥M TVA¥ AIN

TESNNCD FATLVISISET AEN

NOTIVXYL Id50 AZN

HOANIA

I1/e0/€0
STETAd

¥S6%8

£96%8

Z56%8

156798

0sS6ve

L343 4:]

8¥6 T8

LP6D8

R4 4]

Svevs

[ A4 21

EP6¥8

Zveva

I¥6¥g

av6¥w8

6L6¥8

gEE¥E

LEGYE

SE6TE

SE6WR

FEGCYE

EEE78

TL6TE

TL698

HAdKON

ADEHD
23ea uny

OoN Jxoday

©




45 LS 6865L 9L/¥v0/€ dOW “HENVETD YCOTd

Z1'58% £965L 9T/%0/€ SEITIANS DNINYIID
ITI £ JINIWQC ’ENQTIVES 09678
BL GB% 0T T6'TTE DZ65L 9aT/%0/¢ HSHEYId THOTYMINYD 0192
667 PG 0Z65L 9T/¥0/¢ {NIVINNOA)Q3d a¥ TI0L 00T
697 L6 0Z65L 9L/%0/¢ SLIHDIT ¥WLS HH A0 NMOL
FAVRE 2°F4 0z65¢ 9T/%on/¢c ¥ 40 € /LS NOINO 0ST
[4A833 0Z65L 9T/%0/¢ A¥Yd ¥ HONYYE Id3d 0001
|44 0265L aT/%0/€ Ad¥d HOA ¥ H¥IAWE T¥EE
98 PLL 0E65L 9T/%0/¢ ¥ LINI AM NOANYD 02¥
LZ ETE 0ZBESL 9T/%0/¢€ g LINM A¥M NOANYD 0Z%
SL°%9 0ZESL 9T/v0/€ 18 O N S8T
SLUEET neEsst. 9T/%0/¢E O HONYY I¥Ad 008
8L 6LT 0ZESL 9T/%0/¢E SIHDIT &8 D 5 T€§
08°90T DEESL ST/H0/E SIHDIT 4§ 0 § E%¢
£L'GL DEESL 9T/¥0/€E SIHOIT IS 2 N 9LT
L8 0LE 0TESL 91/%0/¢€ ASNOHIYOOD 15 € 3 98
¥EELE'T DESSL 91/%0/€ NOANYD H1IW XIS 0ZZZ
LLTBO9E 0ZESL 91/F0/¢E (DNTNTYAL) LIS O M T¥T
¥0 SBZ GZESL $1/%0/¢€ SHAWIA LS 2 N
LI'ELE 0ZESL 9T/%0/¢ oA IIND IS D 8§
£0°T¥ [114:3-13 9T/ %0 /€ LHDIT TVd/400dIN0 IS 3 §
£%° €6 0EESL 91/%0/¢€ L3 0 BLESDA LINN IS O 8
LS 65 0Z&ESL 9T/%0/¢ HOWEYD IS 4 § $O°t
ST TE NEBSEL 9T/ %0 /E 1S5 NOLINS
[4 343 DZESL ST/¥0/E dqd¥d DA IS E N SOE
£0° 065 DEBSL 9T/¥0/¢E wha 08 ANIAYHY TYINYAS 009
6Z2°£8T 0TESL 91/%0/¢ OWISYs 1S D 5 T2
58 £0§ 0EESL ST/%0/¢ ANTd dlm 1§ HLOOS MOQT
PEET DESSL 9T/%0/€ AAYd  SNEWATY WYS 06%
2L B9L 0ZESL 91/%0/¢€ TIYL  LPE AMH SO 116
90" ¥TT 0CBSL 9T/%0/¢ 05 IS D § 502
LETEB 0Z6SL 9T/%0/¢€ 05 IS5 0 5 t0z
8L728 0ZESL ST/%0/E ¥d LS 3 S 10Z
TT 562 0E&SL 9T/%0/E Z/T dOHS ad TIOL 00T
TZ'80T 0g8stL 91/%0/¢€ 0dag ad TIOL 0TT
LE 99 0ZESL 9T/¥0/€ DOTd Q¥ TIOL 0ET
L6 S0T 0ZESL 9T/v0/¢ dOLSLSEY IS O N TIRE
£6°58 0DTESL 9T /%0 /€ LINGD L5 2 N 59T
96" ¥L DEESL 9T/%0/€ SHY  qdd IHOIUMI¥YD ET19E
91" 502 nZEsL 9t /v0/¢€ T L5 AWM NOANYD 1%
£2794 0ZESL 91/¥0/¢E HEHAWNA LHOITMMIMYD 0192
09°0TE UEESL 9T /%0/ ¢ IHOIT LS SYANOISSIWWOD 28
8L 698 0TESL 3T/%0/¢€ SIHOIT 1§ ALID VINISWIA
0D YAMOd DIAIOVd VHHAIS £56%8
00°0TT 00'0TT £565L 9T/F0/¢ DEASNT HAHSNONILXH "TYNNY
T1 NOILDALOWd HUIS YHddIs 85678
00°8 00'6 Z£569L 91/%0/¢ 910€ ‘0T €3&-8¢ N¥D
NETTY NYIdd ‘A¥0OHS LSBEE
80°6TIL'6 9L pES SEZ09L 9T/T0/E XOAavW T ¥¥d0D
Ze vBL'® 9Z09L 9T /%0/% £0S8600000ANIHY
YEH GEYEdEdd SAYYH INIYS 95558
05" %1 00° 2t BEESL 91/%0/¢ 9T0EZ "%¥Z-11 gdd
05z THE5L 31/%0/¢
ONI ¥IINADINY SANVW LNIVS 55678
00-0SE°T 00°0%€’T BZESL 9L/vo/¢ HALLD YHSYId-=dOHS
TYLOL LHOOWY HENTAL ALYA # 0/d NOILdI¥DSAEd FII0OANI HOUNHA, HEARNN
AJHHD ADEHD
9T/¥0/E HALSIOIY MOHHD 9T/€0/€0 = 23eq uny

g abeg ALNNOD AHHOILS STETEd soN Jaoday




9

00705zt

TL"9LT

007945

To TLe’e
00" 02T

Q0708

9E"6EE'S
057 LBT
00'eve

00" 9258

SOTELSTE

TETLST

00°€EB’ET
€T°199"1
(A4 4
IY.LOL
MAOHHD

abegq

00"0SE'T

PEREACRY
I1'6

00289
q0'0g
a0 ¥

I0°1L9'€E
00'0ET

o0’ og
0001
Q00T
0002

SE6R6°S
QS 481
Q0" g%e

00"2s
00" %08

96" %L
[43m 4]
Z8'99
65'8¢€T
LOTZSE
28 LIT
T IvY
[A 3]
&8 821
02 8L
Qg 8L
0T 8L
90°SET
65 82T
65°8ET
TL 9%T
ESTPET
L970%T
65'8ET

0596
[A -
08°'1T
00 €€8'TT

£1°T98'1

LNOCHY

ILESL 91 /%0/¢€ AS30INY
LEQSL 9T/%0/¢ HEHILEE 1000 L%08%¥0 OEF
LEGIL 9T/%0/€ YEEOD T000 L¥08%¥0 0O

SS9654 31/%0/€
55654 9L/¥0/E

55654 9T/%0/¢ 9T0Z "FZ-TT €4
6T09L 9T/ vo/€E 66%TVE-LOOV FSVET YTTA0D
SBESL 9T/v0/¢€ LETIOL TIVL

ST0%L  9T1/¥0/E
ST09L  $T/¥0/E
ST0SL IT/¥0/E
STO9L ST/%¥0/¢

9865L 9T/%0/¢ SHASYL 9
T009L 91/%0/¢ INIWADNYR WIVID D0WvES
T66SL 9t/v0/¢ SIL¥ND " 0IQvVd
vSESL 9T/%0/¢

¥SESL 9T/%0/E 3T0Z '¥Z-1T €34
LEBSL 9T/%0/¢€ 1odHd TIIH a1p9

9965t  9T/%0/E

99654 9T/¥0/E

9965L ST/%0/€ L8 D ZLE
99654 ST/¥0/¢€

9965L 9L/%0/€

99661 9T/%0/¢

9965L 9T/%0/€

99654 9T/¥0/%

99664 9T/%0/¢

9966L 9T/%0/¢

99664 9T/%0/¢%

996SL 9T/¥%0/€

9965L 91/%0/€

99654 8T/%0/¢€

9966L 9T/%0/€

9965L 91/%0/¢€

LEGSL 9T /%0 /¢ DI3A
9965L  YT/¥0/E

rEGSL 9T/%0/¢ SADHHD ANNOUSADVE
L1094 9T/vo/¢
LTO9L 9T/%0/¢

CTeSL aT/¥0/¢ JAOANE WYED0Ed STOZHIUYH
£T09L 5T/%0/¢ 4T 50000 A
H#SNTAL dL¥d # 0/a NOILAI¥DSEd EDIOANT

9T/%0/€ UHLSIOAY ADIHD
ALNNOD ASHOLS

ONI QOaaEM

HENOHO2 0D HOHSYM

ONI ‘N¥Id #DTA¥ES NOISIA

ONT SH00L ALID YINISUIA
WNIA LNEWAINOE dd0ONYH SN

ARNILVHMEHL

0797 FDILON LSHL
TYNQILYNHALNI WISV
SEHA4AREIN XTYL

ONI SNOILYDINOWWCD ANNNS

SESTYINELNT Avdd NOS

WALSAS dALYM O3 IS

AATHAHS QD 1S

(DA) MEINID YOINIS 0D IS
LA00S @DILSAS O3 IS
HOANZA

2T/E0/ED
g1e1dd

SLevs

vLEVE

ELEYE

2L6YS

TLew8

0L6TS

6986%8

89678

LI6¥E

996%8

59678

v26¥8

£96%8
[4°1:3 4]
196%8
HIEWON

HIHEHD
?3eq uny

rON jxoday



L

£9°86E'61S
P00 6697 €

00°59T

007" ¥#9¢€

ST ELL'Y

TYLOL
ADHHD

abeg

IYLOL SHOEHD
Y0 669 °E

0002
00'S%1

00'6TT
00°'5%€

¥STETT
£Z°PSE
€1 8¢
e TS
LSTBEL'E
$97L0S'T

LNOOWY

ZE6SL

TEBSL
TE6SL

8969L
89654

0g6SL
0E6SL
0Lesd
0E6SL
0E6SL
0E6GL

#ENTHL

91/%0/€

91/%0/¢
31/¥%0/¢

91/¥%0/€
aT/%0/¢

9T/%0/¢
ST/%0/¢€
9T/%0/€
9T/v0/¢€
ST/%0/€
91/%0/¢€

dL¥a

9T/%0/€

# 0/a

SUVIMALYH-SOLT SEWNY

WYOAITOD ‘ILL
g4¥0 9d0 TLLL'ITCH TLL ' AW

NYAE "HddA07
NYAY “§EANT

LHDTT ADTAL0-HD

HOLIMS ALAAVS-S0LT SHNWY
XOgHEIA0D-S0LT SHWY
HYIM "HAVL-SEY AXA
TYITALDATH-S0LT SHWY
TYOINIOATH-S0LT SHWY

NOILITYOSEd H3I0ANI

HALSTOHA ADEHD
ALNOOD AHMOLS

QD A1ddNS YAYAIN NYALSEM 8L6F8
YT TYLINIWNCATANT NYHLIEM LLG6YE
ADYDLYOW FWOH 09u¥vd STTaM aLev8

HOANTA HEHWNN
HDEHD

9T/€0/€0 * 83ed unyg
STETdd roN jxodey




ST/¥0/€

HANOISGTHHOD

HLYQ AOFHD £€5°868 6715 IYLOL SHDEHD

HOLLVEIMOHLAY NV MEIAEY 40 INAWIDIITMONAOY




T

IVLOL
[atk-do)

obeg

00" SL¥
9L 9%
9L 00T
go-sg
gorog
Qe 71
c2°'86C
T LL
0T €9t
ootg
0669
89°'LTE
0T 60¢€
0L BEL
L¥'EET
06" L¥S
e gL
66 " F1L
00789
Sz eeg
T9°0&
£2°0288
Ly 8%
00 €%
aLove
%" sSL
b4
96" ¥¢E
29788
96°'0T
66'6T
86 €T
Q0" ¥L
Q0 S6T
s8Z'6C
Le'LZ
BE ESL
007001
s1'1e
127 L%
00" %T
[A-R-EA
L7 T2
TZ 6C
203
TLTLE
05'6E
-eT" 3z
EL'BS
26'002
£e' €8
00" es
6679
S’ S
86°ST

LNOWY

STL
£TL
£TL
€TL
€1L
g0L
GLPT
oLYT
OLPT
OLPT
OLYT
OL?T
OLYT
OLFT
0LPT
QLFL
OLYT
60L
<iL
80L
80L
904
904
LOL
LOL
804
0L%T
T4
£€TL
804
LTL
aTL
0TL
OTL
CTL
1L
FLL
PIL
80L
80L
804
g0L
g0
QL?T
OLPT
ot1L
OLL
OTL
S04
S0L
S04
QLYT
OLFT
OLPT
804

HENTEL

91/%0/¢€
91/%0/¢€
$T/%0/¢€
ST/%0/¢€
91/%0/¢€
9T/%0/¢
ST/¥0/¢
9T/%0/¢
91/%0/¢€
9T/¥0/¢€
9T/%0/¢
91/%0/¢€
91 /¥0/¢€
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/¢
9T/¥0/E
9T/¥%0/¢€
9T/¥0/E
9T/v0 /¢
91/%0/¢€
9T/%0/%
9T/%0/%
9T/%0/¢€
9T/%0/¢
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/%
9T/%0/€
9T/%0/¢€
9T/%0/¢
9T/%0/¢
9T/¥%0/€
9T/%0/¢€
9T/¥0/¢€
9T/¥%0/€
SL/%0/¢
9T/%0/¢
9T/F0/E
9T/%0/E
9T/¥0/E
S1/%0/€
9T/%0/¢€
91/%0/¢€
91/%0/¢€
91/%0/€
9T/¥0/¢€
91/%0/¢€
9T/%0/¢€
91/%0/¢c
9T/%0/€
91,/%0/¢
9T/v0/€
9aT/v0/€
91/%0/¢
9T /v0/¢
aT/v0/€

FL¥d

SPEE YO HEHONYT HNNY
18T 220A

SSETANIM HOLWYASIQ ST1d
18¢ 08

T80 LIS

SNIN¥YE

sz/2-2e/e 2a

sz/z - Te/T D0 OOUN
WD WW 22-22/Z DG OD¥N
32/2 - EE/T OD¥N

o0 COYN ONINYUYS

sg/e - TET/T DA OD¥N
9g/% - TE/T ODYN

9z/2 - gE/E Dad QYN
-gz/ZT Da COWN dAYD INFH
9g/e - ze/z 2d OD¥N
HWOASON Sd3I440 dA3VEd
AAYMLIOS FEOAY

§LTENd
TEd

SI¥V¥d DNIJNVYS-Z6LLS MdA
LUYD SHIQTIM-30HS
SAINEANS ONINYETD TIYD
ONITIAVHL HTIHM MANNIU
SHINE LEOIT

AT NI OMNINIVML SNIHAE
YL MAOD ANY SHAOTHANZ
ASHAAN DNIANHd #1LOOV
LIM dIvddd LaTIOL
WIANES X SO H1ddy

D ANALIWED A04d S3TAN0d
A NOIIVMISIDEY HIISEEM
F aM dd DM ANANd Td0H
HILNAD dO0LISIA HOA NODIS
¥EIS INIHAVLSIA
SHADOOTYIVA LINYA

WYXH WEDT € 1d o0

$L1S Q0¥ ONACED

SL7and

ONIXEVd

SLTINA

TN d

€1/¢ JIAIOVd

zz/zo

HET TONVHE IWYHd /OLOHd
SWISHD ¥HIA NYETD Xud
HEANOL ¥ALNITEd dENINLEA
ANOHd FLITIAIVS

NED GMMDT SEIVIAHILIMS
LNED GOOMAIOT- LEINAZINT
AT ET/TT0

TYNNYH SESNEINA/SHIV
SISATYNY

SHITIANS HISYM AYD

NOILJIHOEEd

YHALSIDEY JquUYD dSVHOUN

ALNNOD AHEOLS

SENG ¥¥E HIYLIS 9T0E
E0LELPLPL

ZSSEFCSPT

€T6798BET

£99TTOBET

d¥¥ HOHWIL ONHY AFHOA
CO¥N dHdl NILLIHM
SY00 WILLAOL NEILLIHM
IHGNS ONOL NALLIHM
LSIMHLOCS NAZLLIHM
LYOJdUIY ONEHd NILLIHM
AV WOTAHW NELLIHM
FENDEAVH NAILIHM
HYALNIOYH NALLIHM

A5 TEJ¥ALNE NELLIHM
o0 SANTIWAYD NALLIHM
H4NSO1S 50d MHLLIHM
TIAVHNYA

TYMEANEY X0d Od S48
ZLYO NIATOD NASHWOHL
HL¥D NHITOD HLIWS
HLOOLMYS -V LLAAAS
DITY HOHUVH-YILIEAS
NHSOd-0808
QUONILINY-0505

SHMOT NYAY

8 MUATOY TILOH FDOWTINA
L04ddad 401440

T8E COOMAD0T MAN
L0ddd dWOH NIAEN
TSANXIWBHW

OW ONY dNIM TYLOL aX
WOD " HELSIDdY dX
HWSI¥N0L AN OX

d HOVTdLAW NOZYWY OX
qI¥OSNd ¥OLVOILSHANT
0O¥TT¥EH# ANL
8PTE-6¥30-RZ00H# ANT
NYWTIOH

LY NIATCD SILUWH
Ld¥ HOHYL ONAE® SHWYH
JI¥O NIGTIOD WWIHD
QLYD NIATOD NNHETD
UQELIND SYD NWNWILD
ATYIAYW SYD NYWIID
JELNIDEEANES WM MO
W¥HTD R4d S8ITdEEL MO
LOdAd E3T440 MO
LS0dAvod -NIAAN"D
LOdEAEHCH -NIAAN™D
LILY -NIASN'D

0 D STH# HSYD AVILNY
0 A0 SLNAWIETI NOZVWY
HSYD/SIJdHEDNOD NOZVNWY
044 HWOH MdL SNINAW
LNANAYd

# HOIOANI Ld3d-aNnd

TIYD TYIEWKOD INO STTEM
JOANHEA

9T/E0/%E0
L808¥add

i3

ATIHNN

32 uny
toN jaxoday



TE°0LE°S
TE 0LE'S

TYLOL LNNCHY
agwd

z abeg

HINCISSIWWOD

2LVa NOLLYZIHOHLAY NV MATAAY 40 LNIWIFDTITMONADY

+TEI0L DIBD+

#SNTHL LY NOTIJITEISHET # HOICANI I143d-aNNg HOUNAA JIHWAN
od

e3eq unyg

ON axzoday

FALSIDEE G¥¥D d8¥H UNd 9T/€0/E0
ALNOCD AEHOLS LS08¥%SHA




GOILTTT

1

abed

TE 0LE'S

¥LT09F
6Z'E€¥T
91 '5%
£EE 025
568°008"%

TYLOL

swTI, ung

TE 0LE'S

PLT09%
6Z EVT
ST'S¥
€Z°02%
68 008’V

SqEYDo H5VHOENA

00"

ag”
00"
Q0"
00"
00"

SO DINOYLOETH SYISNYEL LOIETd SHJFHD

0o0-

00"
00"
00"
00"
go-

Ld0ddd XIVWHNS ONNA

o’

oo-
00’
00
00’
o0’

ONILNNODOY LIADANE OI7d0d

ALNLNOD AHEOLS

ag-

00"
a0
GO
Q0
co”

SMOEHD CIJAL

TYLOL

PLY LOTHELSIC H¥IA
NCISETIWHWCD WESI¥NOL DA
aNnd L8000 HIILSAL
Savoyd

THHENED

0se
oee
L8T
0zZo
T00

NOILLAIHDSEd aNnd

9T/E€0/€0 ¢ @3rg uUny
00£%dd ‘oN 3i0day




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 15, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for February 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer ' Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: )
VS Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

%ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] ~ Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.




ECLVE'99E'T § TM'SVE'C S LPTLE § OT9ES'B S G PER9 S - § SLTHOVIE § ISLLST S GETEHB 3 L600L’S S SELB0°Ip § ZOT09'BT S CENO0YB S OLS/SSEY § £0'TZ0VE § OODLEZZY ©  TVLOLONVYD
- 5 - s - s - s - $ - $ 15 od
- $ LS10 Xd
- s - 5 - s - s - $ - $ LSIEG XA
TOT95'SE6  $ - $ - s - $ - S 0TLOT'EST 5 SLLpE™ § 6UE6Y'Y § GEPEET § SE'PLETL § ESLES'EY § TEWIOPII $ 289088 § 151G 2d"%d
a5
PTTIN'EYT § TSeRE S - 5 OC9ES'E S 96°0LT § BFL6S0Z_§ ST'OLT  § E£405 5 ETBLE § BUGZYO $ CLOGBT § EETLYS $ BEO9EET $ O09ZEL'Y9 $ LIPS §  DJ3sNAIVLOL
JuswAediaag
OT'TOR'T¥T  § 659887 S PI'B0S'8 $ S518  § TTCES'0C § TEIT § VES9S  § KOLLE § ZEEOM'S § LLPEST § 6GESKS  $ ESOLT'BT § O9ZEI'tY § TrELST B 970¢/5102
¥1°0TS $ 206 g 90tz $ TveS  § 97's9 g S0 5 6T % 6T $ 9£'0z $ S6'S $ pELT $ 9868 § - T A 4 $  HOM4TYLOL
¥69zE $ 8§ $ PELT 0§ 0TBE  § 18°T% $ 5E0 s ST% § L $ S0€T 3 &3¢ § TTTT $ 548 H SO'9ET $ STOZ/PTOT
0Z'€81 $ e $ L6 $ TEIL § SP'ET $ 61'e 5 v90 s o $ ogs $ o1z $ £29 $ 6TLE g AT -8 |eloiqng
o1 3:19 S vTE s B $ IE1T 5 SbET s 610 5 %910 $ o $ 0EZ L 4 5 £C% $ 6TTE $ 194 5 rToT/E102
- $ E102-ZT07
HOBSISSY
LEVIG'RER § - 5 IVTIE § - S ESERSD § LO'BSE'OET § ¢OESO0T $ LSTOS'E § SLUOET S B9/SA°0F § SESE6TI § [TGISE § TOSRSZAL § Sv'BBEGLE 5 L2C0ETE  $ SIVLOLLMO4IY
LFTLE $ IVTLE S PRANIAS punjay
067CO9'BEE 5 - $ - $ £5€69°9 § LOBSEVEE § I9ESO'T § LSUOSE § SLL0E'ZT$ 89'.S9'0v § SE'SEG'ET § LWIET'SE § TO'SSS'ZEY ¢ EVREREIE § TETOEP6  $  OIUNDISWIOL
2E'IWETER & - 4 - S P00zss ¢ BL'ESY6CT § LLESOL S TTZVS'E § LLYSE'T$ LELSWOv § BOZLBIT $ 96'POD'SE § BOEISIRT § L9°ZL1'8TE § 6ZCZL'E6 $  ST/STIVIOL
76'sy S €L $ %00 $ oTo $ €T $ 9Tl $ 9970 S 6T $ S66 3 1562 H SS35S5Y [20ads
00 TOG'ZER & ' t0'0Z5'5 § SS'OPO'ETT § TLESOT § TGE'IPSE $ pOPSET § TTSEVOr § THTLR'TT $ VU'EOO'SE § EUE09TST § £9TLTEIE § 8LB69EE S 910E/ST0T
26°459°5 s - $ - $ - $ BYELIT S 6T 0L $ swg $ 96T § B6'TT  § TEOZZ § IRE9 § IS8T S E6TLE $ 9LSELT 5 £57085 $  HOMdTWLOL
25'150' S - $ - S - $ 956L6 $ 61°0v9 $ TES S B9LT S BT S 6T00T 5 TE8S S LFOLT S £9°€s8 S OLUSTET  § TETLE 4 ST02/vroz WL0L
55855V |elaadg
95646 5 [ $ TES 5 89T $ BLTT $ 6700C § U6 S LPOLT § £9E88 S 9USILT ¢ TETLE 5 STOZ/%10E
St°'10g H £6'461 $ 0Tty $ €50 S BT $ &T'1 $ 0oL $ S6v $ 0T $ 0£88 8 - $ 9802 s je101gng
€8'58Z $ 8L 0§ B5°ZE $ L0 S 060 s 08¢ S ATOT $ 66T $ 99'% $ 68 g - S §0°90T S FIOZ/eTov (mior
s5es5sy |edads
48 % 65'CE $ LT0 $ 060 $ 090 § /10T S 66T S 998 S GRby § 50907 $ ¥T0Z/ET0Z
9Z°L91 S g9 § 66°ST S pT0 S S¥0 $ 0ED $ 6% S ¥§0 S 5% S W g - § €S §  ET0Z-TIOZ o),
55355y |RIDadg
97°£91 $ 559y § 66'ST $ $T0 P ] s 0go S 66 S ¥S0 $ sTv s W 13 £0'es g ET0Z/ZT0T
- S TT0T/170T
LE'TST [ tars % 4344 $ ITo 5 Ep0 S 670 s 98t S TT $ £y S 68'TT 5 505 g TI0Z/0107
- 5 0T0€/600T
TYLOL %TUNY  LANdHAO  %9Y/v  S3IEYN3d H3WI/IHIL HLNOA 207 aNE Q3N aNE 31vis nov dv3 aa HJS d0 HOS Q19 LSnaN TYHINGDS HIUNSYIYL
491 9059€-T00  bOTHE-TO0 100 05z T00 f1:11 fi7¢1] [1FA 090 091 08t 005-100 1]

STOZ AHYMHE3] 30 HLINOW JHL HO4 1vA OV




o’

(e
(o] eld

-£¥ 90’
-~€8°0%T”
=STTTRLS
-BE IST’
6% GL9 "

“E0°BTE

~BT Z¥9”
-¥0°€95°
-18°%¥0%9”

[t

~SZ2 €68 "
~€¥ 918"
-95°g9¢ "’
-99°688°
-I¥ 0ES”
-LL"9Ls”’
-50° %89 "

-go-ootT

-S55°Z56 "
~19°61%'

oo
-00° 099

-00°000°
-EYI LTS
-€9°8€0"
-TE° 506 ¢
-9L°TL9”
-00°000°
-Lg9Le”

00"
00-

PSEET6 "
-E1° 199"
£ 6867

o0

~10°5L¥% "
-¥8°955°

Go-coe

00° 000"
06-00T"

0E"BEF

0L ¥68 "
05°20Z*
0Z 016"

co”
[Hti

0S5 €T
85°Z8T”

oo’

FONWIVE

T

00" oo co- 00" 00"
oc" \['N 0o " 00" 00"
oo” LN 00- 0c" [l
0¥ oo oc” 00" 00" Z6°PZE'T
LOZ 00" 60" 00" 00" 00"
L08°T [N ce" 16 €85 T LS POZ'e2E £8° 924 ' TET
[£:14 Qo 0e" 00" gz 6r0'8e 65 8E8 ‘8T
0£0° 1 [+ 00" 00" 00" 'R
oo oc” 08" 00* 60"
62T po” 00" 00" 85 6LE'L SETOLE'TT
SEL'T [+]+Ie 00- 00" 00 00~
61T ce” 00" 0g" 00" 00"
co” 00° 00" 00" co"
£z [N 00" 00" 00" 00 E68'TZ
9t oo 0o" 00" 00" 00"
6¢ 0e” 00" 09" 00" GO SET’S
(427 oc- oo 00° 00" - BE 96T
€8 oo 00" 00° ep - DT 6L6'TY
z8 L' 00" 00" 00" S€7880 L2
143 0o’ 90" 00 ° o0e" £6° 269 0¥
oc” ap0” 00" 00" 507 0F
£68°T oe” 00" 00’ g 20"
LET 0c" 00" 00 ¥6 PEF’H 08 08ETT
00" 00" 00" oo 00"
00" 00" 00 .00 oo
000'T 00" 09’ 00" oo 00"
(11204 00" 00" ~TF 018 £6'9%2 91 587 9L6°59
£9E°T 00" 00" 00" [N 0o
LOE'E 00" 0a° 00" oo SETT00 'L
102 co" 00" 00 ° [N og"
00T 00" 00" 00" oc” 00"
*g 00" 00" 00" oo’ 90"
00" 00" 00" [N a0
vo” 00" 00" I N 00"
86 [N 0o’ 00 ° 00" 90"
T 00" 00" 00" oo - 00"
LEE'T ce” 20" Z8°965°T cZ TZT'8Z 2% 800 'L
co* 00" 00° ('8 20"
105 N 00" 00 ° 0" 00" 05T
ZBL'L 6o 00" -ZE'0LZ2°2 9EBLE TS G9°ZE5 €92
oc” 00" 00" oo 00"
z ' 00" 00" oo [N
1 oe” 90" 00" 00" 00"
'R 00" 0a° 00" 00"
8LT‘8 ce" 00" 00° oo 00"
BST'L [N 00" [N oc’ 60"
S1Z‘1T  oc” 00" 0’ -88°PET LLE6 L6 TO6'BSL
0c" 00" 00" oo” 00"
00" 0o a0’ oe’ 60"
g oo 00° 00" o0 oo
L eo” 00" 00" 00" 00"
[N oe-" 00" 00" 60"

ONTANH  LNO SHEASNTAL NI SEddSNYEL SYIHONOA NENCE STTIOYAWE SILNAWISANNS T
910Z/20 o4
LIFHS DNISNYTYH ATHLHOW
ONTINNODOY 5w HANSYEEL
abeq HIHNSYARL ALNOCD AZHOLS

op- oo

oo’ 60"

IV ('R

oo -SET18£°20F
e’ -£8°0F¥1°L0E
~88 6TS'0EY -0L ¥B¥LES’T
-1£°626'6S ~¥8 60T 98T
]+ -S¥"GLS0E0"T
oo -£0°8TE
-0000L’E -TT 265 FF1
00" ~¥DEYS'SELT
-60°0SE -8 ¥52°51T
oG- 00

~SE 669 -10°980°S¥
~6E€°TZ5'8 -50'S66 ¢
-66TEST T -SG9 TFE'EY
~£L°BS0°LB -T2 6L "6GE
-T¥ 9g2 -0T £82°22T
—ZETI00 wS -¥8 E£99°GE
-GLT0LD"9ED -8Z 90E ‘E£ET
~60° 0L -00°0L

00" -55'256°'068°¢C
-¥5T2E¥TTE -16°858 'S8T
00" 00

90" -00°099

60" =00 000'000°T
65 E9L TR -ZE LLT'6ES T
-LLTOEY'FE -9 LOFPEE’T
00" -92°806'97T2°¢E
-29°108 82 -pT 048 2LT
00" ~00°000°'00T
00" -LZ3L8°%R
00" 00”

00" 00"

~80°0%Z 5569166
-€1°198°'T 00°00&
-90°Z¥E’9S SIS ELETRTETT
00" 00"
-L6T0ELS -%0°5BB'SEY
SLLTTETL0ST  -5L°SLE8S0°L
60" 00 00T

00" 00" 000°e

[N 00°00T°T

00" 0E"6EF

00" 0t %68 8418
00" 05 EDT'EST L
TP R¥ZETB'Z €9 869'6E£T 0L
00" 0a°

00" 00"

00" 05°£2T°S

00" 14 T

co" 00"
SILATIIAN TEeME0d - 'Ive

5aNNd TV TELOL

DNIJIOH SIAWIL dIUNDIS 006
DONIQTOH SIXYL d3dnDISHN 008
AI¥ THNION QLT

XONIoYaWa 391d 09e
IOTHLSIA AT 068
NOLISSTWWOD WSIMNOL DA O€T
LoEACCHd TIWY DA 022

aNNd 94749 1rel §.44TATHS 01T
SINEHD TYdEdEd 90T

ADVEAYE TEL 007

anNfnd ¥avd oel

LEN TEL 68T

aNnd I8N0D IDTLSNC L9T
INIAIIOY INIDIGNI S8T
JAA0D LOTULETA 087

LML 04T

aNnNd AROTONEDEL S91

LHEJ TIGOHDS 037

TOOHDS 0T

LEN0D ON¥J OFT

0D¥Ya ST1EM dMOE VaS[H SET
YIMAS EFATATT YINIOHIA 0T
ALID VWINTDATA AQ NMOL 0ZT
TTIH J70D 80 NMOL 01T
NOLLYZITIEYLS 00T

WALSAS HALYM 060

AN FUNLONULETEINI 080
SLIALOEd IYLTIAY) QLD
FOILISINDOY ILRANIINDZ 090
HITAEIAS 0S50

GI¥ TULOW SP0

LOIULSTE J¥I4 090
ADNIOREWI F¥IZ SEO

H¥IZ 0EO0

NOXIALILEHY PE0

Sav0y 0Zo

XYL~ HONYLISISSY LNIDIGNI S0
THOIAEW LNEDYANT 010
TYYEANID TOO

dOSSASSY  HSYD ALLIAL SO06
AZTUERS HEYD ALLAE %06
HSY) ALLAd 06

SNIOD aIC 106

INOGOOY 4191 SLUWLS 96T
LAY AENCH 0DdYd S77TaM 16T
JROCIDY 3D 09¥Yd STTIM 66T
SATYS ALUIA0Ed ¥ A0 § 86T
SQUYDD ¥ENYE SSENISNH L6T
HNYH NI HSWD 96T

ONIQICH 13000 LOTALSIA FET
HSYD WasSO Godwd STIAM €61

RCII&TADSEA 1oYW

LOTESIOT ST/LOSED UNY
00TZYIL oN 3aoday




00°S4 9t/9z/2
19 68T 91/9z/¢
0T Lé8 st/ez/e
0S5 "%ES’E 9T/92/T
007002 at/9c/2
6T 92 91/9z/%
G0 0ST 91/9e/e
£€LTE'T 91/9€/2
€S EFT'T ST/60/0T
€L°08S ST/%¥1/8
ILTOT T/51/8
00" SET 9T/6T/¢
00°0CT 91/61T/T
LT E8 e1/61/2
00°00¢% 9T/61/2
00" ¢se s1/61/¢
00" sz e1/61/2
Q0 826 LOT 9T/6T/2
ZL 056 AT/6T/2
C0°8T 91/6T/C
08 " ¥%TT 91/61/2
00 00T 91/61/¢€
L8 0LE 91/61/2
86 %1 91/61/2
€9 92T 9T/6T/2
98121 9T/61/2
00°00T 91/61T/2
007001 91/6%t/¢
00 0Z% 91/61/2
00°Z6€E 91/58/¢2
00°0ST 9T/50/¢
Q0" ¥e 9t/50/¢
89°L8T 9t/50/2
00" 8%¢ st/ee/T
00" 00S ‘¥ 9tT/2e/1
o0-08%'eCT Sst/ve/et
00805 ST/¥2/2T
00°66¢€ si/ve/et
00° 08 ST/11/2T
00" GE ST/Z0/0T
00° 095 ST/Z0/0T
00" 00% ST/20/0T
80°%T ST/81/6
0054 S1/%0/6
SZ 16T ST/1Z/8
00" 8L ST/¥2/L
81°06 S1/92/9
S0°98 ST/E2T/9
0006 ST/ET/%
SLTBE ST/LT/¥®
16 9T ST/LT/¥
0009 ST/LT/¥
00° 052 st/oe/le
0052 s1/0z/e
JUnNouy 23ed H>ayd
91/62/2 - 00/00/0

666666 UENOAYL T
SNIINNCOOY S, YadnNSyHEAL

T abeg

syoayD burpurising

0D SNI HAIT HIAIDVAL

XYL dELAY OVTAY/dEd dWd
NYId SZ€T OVIAY/dI3d dWE
dWCD dEddEAAd

(X¥L-¥314Y) dRWNCD dEddEdHd
aqay FHAOTAWE ANSNI NOISIA
ad¥ JEXOTAWA dNSNI TYLNHO
dnANg AFAOTAWE/TYOTATN
dOANg AFXOTIWH /T TIHANW
SZT "SNI HAIT TYINOTIOD
¥O/NOLIDETION Hd4 ASTAHHS
YaO¥VAIN ‘AINNOD HOHSYM

NI 59004 ALID YINIDUIA
JIDA

HLIWS - NOSdQ

ENIFAHIYA 'YZO0S

ATN A0 DJOSSY SHHANODTH
OTIVSNEAWCOD ADNEOY DITdnd
OILVSNAdNOD ADNASY DITsing
d OTADNY ‘INIJLHEE

HONYNIA OILOY NODEIO

© O HDI¥IVHE CHHTION

HOTYA AQ¥L HSNOH aNOOW
VAYWYL ‘NYDTIR

T ALLIE SIONYHA

AAAIVD/ A9uds  HELNEdEYD

4 ATTIOW ‘EENING

AN A0 DOSSY S.¥OSTHSSY
NSSY SYAOMNHLYM NYDIHIAWY
DONI S¥NOL ALID YINIDWIA
AI0QLI¥¥EL HOHYL ONHY

d OTEONY ‘INIALHEI

SAWYL TIYHSAYH

SIMIET AIAVA ¥ANTIOA
NOOTYS J00TE 40 IadoNg
ANTD ' NEWHL

ONI '0D0L0d TYOUON

ADEEE ' YAOLNOW

ADAEE  VAOQLNOW

YHA TYNOTIYN HILIVLS dHATIS
OEMD ' INVED

HTLIL J04 NOTIVIDOSSY
NODVIY ATEYN NNV ‘AVEIOW
- VYELIGYL ’‘NOSHOH

STYHD ‘dO0OH

ONI D99 HANHL

HONH ‘IY0o44d0

A¥¥vd ® WANIT ‘dddId

NHOI ‘ENSZdEANd

NHOD ‘AYHAS

AYHD ' SNYAR

HYHOgEd " JHaaNdag

JHLIWIT AC SEOAND YAYASN
YOATYI WAV TEIIY

sweN @sficTdud/Iopusa
woxg

#YOBYD woxg

S5:T15:0T

ALNNOD AHIOLS

£0€006
Z0e006
TOE006
00E00S
662006
ZZT006
6TT0O06
LOTOO0G
LOTOO6
TO0Z006
ST9006
0STEOF
£68E0F
£86L0F
Ti8¥%CH
LT8¥0¥
LOEEQT
685201
685201
568€0%
g¥SPod
TLS¥O0¥
TL#00T
6C9E0F
?L8F0V
STETOP
LETEOY
T90€0T
LSTQOT
€68E0F
EV6E0F
S68E0¥
LOBVOV
Z95v0¥
99%I0¥%
EPLEOY
LETTOY
Ta9¢v0%
T29%0%
EC6E0F
VOLTVOF
6SLT0Y
LESFOT
9€LYOY
SZTLYOY
S8E6EDY
9L3%0%
0L2%0%
Z8ee0y
6TS¥0¥
TE2%0%
6G6E0F
IS7C0T
LBSTOF

# uUosaDg

:OBWTI uny

08 66T
00 66T
00 66T
03 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 661
0 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 65T
00 66T
00 86T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
0¢ 667
00 661
06 66T
0C 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
GO0 66T
00 661
0 661
0 66T
C0 661
G0 661
00 5661
o0 BAT
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
bas yjueg
9T/LO/ED
caLTId

S96%¢  ¥d
PO6¥E ¥Md
€96F€ dUd
Z96%g  ud
T96%E dd
8S6¥E ud
LSEYE  dd
956%€ dd
PLLFE dd
SOLFE ud
TETFE ¥4
TL8%8 D
LSB¥8 AD
$98%8 MO
£98%8 AD
T58%8 D
8€8%8 MO
ZEBPR M2
TE8%8 D
6Z8%8 AD
9Z8%8 D
608¥8  AD
808%¥8 MO
908k8 M2
z8L¥8 AD
L9LYR  AD
£9L%8 D
8GLF8  ND
SSL78 M)
EVLPE MO
ZTL¥E AD
£TLFR D
869¥%8 D
6LS¥8 D
0PS¥8  MD
¥i¥vs D
88E¥8 D
SLERE Mo
9SZ¥8 D
ZSSEB  MD
B6TES WD
BSTEG MO
D6EEES D
0S5ZE€8  MD
¢1TER HD
L1628 AD
T6GZ8  MD
SLYEZ8  ¥D
¥0¥Z8 D
CLETE  MD
LEETI8 D
ZZ6TB D
8TSI8 MO
6S¥T8 MDD

# Hosyup dz
9B unyg

roN axodex




LO TS8 ' ¥FT 2TRIA0L

LO TS8'¥%T Te30l juwrg

9579191 9T/62/2 ¥ILAd ‘NESHYT TLTT 00 66T TL6FE  dd
€8°210'1 9t1/9¢/¢ L DIID ‘S8EH ZIT 00 66T QL6FE  dUd
00°09¢°T 9T/9¢/¢ LZZVH 2088Y ¥ALHOIA H§Id T05006 00 661 696%E¢ Hd
T1Z°92% 9T/9¢e/2 SENT NOTNO/AWDSAY Z0¥006 D0 66T g96%¢ ud
€9°2T 9T/9z/¢ AONTENSNI Ldad 66£006 00 661 L96%E ¥4
LL 6% 91/9z/2 XYL YHLJAY SNI HSYM/CEAIWNI LOE00G 00 66T 996FE ¥Ud
Junourg I3eq Mosud smeN ssfoTdug/Iopusp # uosasd beg xueg # yosyp di

st/62/z - 00/00/0 weag

666666 UbnoIxyl T #30BYD WoIS

sxovyD BurpuerlsiIng

DNTINNCDOIY €. ¥AdNSYEaL SS:TS:0T ¢ @WTL uny 9L/L0/£0 * @3 und

2beg AINOOD AE¥OLS zo,LTIg :oN axodexn




PROTECTION DISTRICT

Year To Date Call Volume

= Fires = EMS Hazmat « Service Call False Alarm

Fires 10
EMS 218
Hazmat 5
Service Call 23
False Alarm 10
Total 2606

Fives 5 Number of Vol. Responses: 32
EMS 129 Average Response Time: 8:27
Hazmat 4 Patient Transports January: 39
Service Call 7 Patient Transports YTD: 63
False Alarm 4 Hours spent out of district on transports 97
Total 149 Highest call volume day of the week: Saturday

s Ajd to TMFPD

Aid to TMFPD 12 71 (Virginia City) 55
Dist. 74/75 Calls 39 72 (Virginia City Highlands) 43
North Dist. Total 51 74 (Lockwood) i9

75 (McCarran) 32

North Dist. Auto Aid

u Dist. 74/75 Calls

Calls by district

100

U%Wﬂ@

,\'\.“ AV p\b‘ . Bl ?

Annual Fire

inspections

0 20 40 6C 80

= Re-Inspectians YT - Mew Business tnspections YTO

Ingpections {02/2016) 28
Annual Fire

Tuspections YTD 58
New Business

Inspections YT 37
Re-Inspections YTD 12
Number of Fire

Permits Issued YTD 6
Fire Plan Reviews

Completed YTD 25

# Annual Fire Inspectlons YTD = Annual Fire Inspections (02/2016)

All annual budget items submitted by February 1.

All below ground tanks checked.

Standardization completed on all apparatus.

FEMA Smoke Alarm Grant completed. 332 residential alarms installed throughout the county.

All evacuation barrels inspacted.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6j\5. f...--[(p : Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners® meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
s s District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r

Agenda Item No. 77




Storey County @ummunitp Bevelopment

Buginess Licensing

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0866 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Fr:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 7, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the March 15, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. 3D CONCRETE, INC. ~ Mining/ 655 Peru Drive TRI

B. FRANK M. BOOTH - Contractor / 222 Third St. ~ Marysville, CA (contractor)

C. HORROCKS ENGINEERS, INC. - Contractor / 2162 W.Grove Pkwy. Ste.400 ~ Pleasant Grove , UT
(Consultant Civil Engineering Services)

D. RED HAWK FIRE & SECURITY - Contractor / 5100 Town Center Circle Ste 350 ~ Freemont , CA
(Fire and Life Safety)

E. SUNSTATE EQUIPMEMENT CO., LLC - Contractor / 5552 E Washington St. ~ Phoenix, CA
(Deliveries, Construction equipment rentals)

F. SYNERGY CONSTRUCTION, LLC. —~ Contractor / 4730 S Ft. Apache Rd Ste.300 ~ Las Vegas, NV
{Construction )

G. NEFAB PACKING WEST, LLC — Contractor / 8477 Central Ave ~Newark, CA (manufacturing)

H. DAMON INDUSTRIES dba Service World — General / 822 Packer Way ~ Sparks (Juice Sales & Service)

1. ADAMS & GARTH, INC. — General /7130 Glen Forest Dr. Ste.110 ~ Richmond , VA (Staffing &
Recruiting)

J. AIRGAS USA, LLC - Contractor / 3737 Worsham Ave ~ Long Beach, CA (welding Supplies, medical
Supplies }

K. REDS FIRE & FLOOD - Contractor / 2410 Walnut St ~ Reno (Construction Repair)

L. TESLA MOTORS NV, INC. - General / 420 USA Pkwy. ~ (Service Electrical Motors) TRI

M. PRODUCTION INNOVATION - General / 287 Belblossom Way ~ Los Gatos, CA (Sales & Consulting.)

N. EC COMPANY -- Contractor/ PO Box 10286 ~ Portland, OR (Construction & Resale of Generators )

Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




Vanessa Stephens

From; Pat Whitten

Sent: Thursday, January 07, 2016 10:12 AM

To: Vanessa Stephens

Cc: Tim Crowley (tim@crowleyandferrato.com)
Subject: FW: commission meeting

Good Morning V-

Would you please pencil in a presentation by EP Minerals for our March 15" meeting? Presenters should be Gregg
Jones, their President & CEO and possibly Tim Crowley. Many thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775} 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and emplover.

From: Tim Crowley [maiito:tim@crowleyandferrato,com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 16, 2015 2:42 PM

To: Pat Whitten

Subject: commission meeting

Hey Pat,
Let me know if you think an EP presentation makes sense at one of your meetings. If so, let’s get it calendared.
Thanks

Tim
775-843-1345 cell

CROWLEY & R
PUBLIC AFFAIRS

\©




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[ ] Public hearing required [X |

1. Title: Public Hearing to consider approval of Resolution 16-436 authorizing the lease of
County property located at 1705 Peru Drive to Ames Construction, Inc.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the Resolution authorizing the lease of County
Property located at 1705 Peru Drive to Ames Construction Inc., and authorize the Chair to

sign. :

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Ames Construction Inc. has been awarded the contract to construct the
Extension of USA Parkway by NDOT. Ames is in need of office space for its construction
staff. It is proposed that Ames lease an unused portion of the County’s building located at
1705 Peru Drive for a period of 22 months renewable for an additional 12 months if
needed. Ames will pay no rent, but will make approximately $56,000.00 worth of tenant
improvements to the premises which will remain with the premises upon termination of the
lease. A portion of the parking area at the building will also be leased by Ames for the
purpose of allowing NDOT to utilize the parking area for a construction trailer. Notice of
the proposed lease and of a public hearing to consider approval of a resolution authorizing
the lease has been published in the newspaper on March 4, 2016. Lease of the County
property is authorized by NRS 244.2833.

5. Supporting materials: Attached is the proposed resolution, the proposed lease, a copy of the
published notice and NRS 244.2833

6. Fiscal impact: ~

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X___ District Attorney

L




8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Storey County Water and Sewer System

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.




RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 436

RESOLUTION FOR THE LEASE OF SPACE IN COUNTY BUILDING TO AMES

WHEREAS, the County has unused space in its building located at 1705 Peru Drive,

McCarran , Nevada, located in Storey County, and;

WHEREAS, Ames Construction, Inc., (Ames) a foreign corporation is the general
contractor constructing an extension of the USA Parkway within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center and desires to utilize a portion of the vacant space in the County’s building while it is

constructing the extension., and;

WHEREAS the construction of the extension will be an economic benefit for Storey

County and its residents, and;

WHEREAS, providing currently unused space in County’s building will assist Ames in

the construction of the extension, and

WHEREAS, by the terms of the proposed lease Ames will construct tenant improvements

to County’s property which improvements will remain with the property upon the termination of

the lease, and

WHEREAS, the construction of the lease improvements without cost to the County will

also be an economic benefit for Storey County and its residents, and

WHEREAS, the amount of space to be utilized by Ames within the County’s building

will be well less than 25,000 square feet, and;




WHEREAS, NRS 244.2833 authorizes the County to lease its property without first
offering the lease to the public and for less than fair market value if the Board of County
Commissioners adopts a resolution stating that it is in the best interests of the county to lease the

property, and;

WHEREAS, notice of the proposal to lease the property was published in the Comstock
Chronicle, a newspaper qualified under NRS chapter 238 of the Nevada Revised Statutes that is

published in Storey County on March 4, 2016, and;

WHEREAS, a hearing on the proposal to lease the property was held on the 15th day of

March, 2016, and;

WHEREAS, a copy of the proposed lease is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 which sets forth

the terms and conditions upon which the County proposes to lease the property,

NOW THEREFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY

COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES:

The lease of a portion of the County’s vacant property located at 1705 Peru Drive,

McCarran, Nevada to Ames Construction Inc., without first offering the space to the public and

for less than fair market value is in the best interests of Storey County.

i
i

I .




Accordingly, the County Manager is hereby authorized to execute the proposed lease
attached hereto as Exhibit I on behalf of Storey County.

Passed by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County, this 15th day of March,
2016.

Chairman, Storey County
Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Clerk of the Board Deputy District Attorney




LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Lease") is made and entered into by and between
Storey County, a political subdivision of the Staie of Nevada ("Lessor") and Ames
Construction, Inc. a foreign corporation ("Lessee").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, LESSOR is the owner of the property which it desires to lease to
LESSEE, and;

WHEREAS, LESSEE desires to lease from LESSOR certain real property as more
fully described below for the purposes and on the terms stated herein, and;

WHEREAS, the property to be leased consists of approximately 1634 square feet of
arca within a building as well as an additional 720 square feet within the parking lot both
owned by LESSOR, and;

WHEREAS, The Board of County Commissioners after publication and a public
hearing has adopted a resolution resolving that it is in the best interests of the County to
lease the property without first offering the property to the public and to lease it for less
than fair market value

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto incorporating the above recitals as part of
their agreement and in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions, do
hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
LEASED PREMISES

Section 1.01. Leased Premises. The term "Leased Premises" means space in the
building located at 1705 Peru Drive, McCarran, Nevada and associated parking area
owned by LESSOR. The space within the building to be occupied by LESSEE is depicted
in yellow in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. Also leased
is an additional 720 square feet of area within the parking lot associated with the building
which area is depicted in green on the attached Exhibit A

Section 1.02. Demise of Leased Premises. LESSOR hereby leases to LESSEE,
and LESSEE hereby leases from LESSOR, the Leased Premises, on the terms and

Page 1 of 13




conditions set forth in this Lease.

ARTICLE 11
TERM

Section 2.01. [Effective Date. The effective date of the Lease ("Effective Date™)
will be the date both parties to this lease sign the lease.

Section 2.02. Term. The initial term of'this lease shail be for 22 months. Ames
may request an extension of the lease for up to an additional 12 months. Such request
must be made in writing at least thirty days prior to the termination of the initial term of the
lease.

ARTICLE 111
RENT

Section 3.01. Rent. LESSEE shall pay to LESSOR as rent for the Leased
Premises, the sum set of zero dollars ($0.00) per month during the initial term of the lease.
If Ames requests an extension of the lease, the monthly rental amount during the extended
portion of the Iease shall be Two Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($2,250.00) per
month.

ARTICLE IV
CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AND ADDITIONS THERETO

Section 4.01. Construction of Improvements. In lieu of the payment of rent
during the initial term of the lease, LESSEE shall make improvements to the leased
premises acceptable to LESSOR as are set out in the attached Exhibit B. Alternatively,
Lessor will cause the construction of the improvements and/or retain contractors to
construct the improvements. In which case Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for the
improvements it pays for or pay the contractors hired by Lessor for the improvements they
construct. Said improvements are to remain with the premises upon LESSEE’S ending its
occupancy of the premises and become the property of LESSOR without compensation to
LESSEE. LESSOR will bear the cost of any permits needed to construct the improvements
set out in Exhibit B. .

LESSEE may make any other alterations, additions, or improvements to the
Leased Premises which LESSEE deems appropriate as long as such alterations, additions
or improvements do not materially degrade the Leased Premises. LESSEE shall acquire
from appropriate governmental agencies every permit required to make such alterations,
additions, or improvements. LESSEE shall furnish a copy of each and every permit to

Page 2 of 13




LESSOR prior to beginning any such work and shall complete said work according to
applicable building codes in a workmanlike and expeditious manner. Upon notice of
termination of the occupancy of the premises, LESSEE shall have fifteen (15) days within
which time LESSEE shall be permitted to enter upon the Leased Premises for the purpose
of removing any of the alterations, additions or improvements other than those set out in
Exhibit B. On that date which is fifteen (15) days after notice of termination of the
occupancy of the premises, all such alterations, additions, and improvements shall
immediately become LESSOR's property and shall remain on the Leased Premises without
compensation to LESSEE.

Section 4.02. Premises Security. LESSEE shall be responsible for immediately
changing all exterior door locks and providing a set of keys to Fire Department Command
Staff to facilitate after hours emergency entry. LESSEE shall also deliver existing locks
that have been removed to LESSOR’s Public Works Department.

Section 4.03. Tenant Improvements. LESSEE shall be responsible for payment
and installation of all tenant improvements and furniture deemed necessary to facilitate
functionality. This includes but is not limited to lighting, exit signage, fire extinguishers,
desks, work stations and carpeting as needed.

Section 4.04.Liens. LESSEE shall keep the Leased Premises free from, and shall
indemnify, defend and hold LESSOR harmless from any claims or liens arising out of any
work performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred by, to, or for LESSEE. Such
indemnification shall include attorney's fees and all costs. If LESSEE shall, in good faith,
contest the validity of any such lien, then LESSEE shall at its sole expense defend itself
and LESSOR against the same and shall pay and satisfy any adverse determination or
judgment that may be rendered thereon before the enforcement thereof against LESSOR or
the Leased Premiscs.

Section 4.05. Entry by LESSOR. LESSOR and its agents and employees may
enter the Leased Premises during normal working hours, Monday through Friday, after
giving LESSEE advance notice to (a) inspect the Leased Premises; (b) exhibit the Leased
Premises to prospective purchasers, tenants, or lenders; (¢) supply any service to be
provided by LESSOR to LESSEE; (d) post notices of non-responsibility; or (e) repair
improvements on the Leased Premises. LESSOR's entry onto the Premise under this
Section shall be conducted so as to cause as little interference to LESSEE's normal
operations as is reasonably possible.

Page 3 of 13




ARTICLE V
USE OF LEASED PREMISES

Section 5.01. Use of Leased Premises. LESSEE shall use the Leased Premises
for construction management purposes. LESSOR warrants and represents to LESSEE
that the Leased Premises are zoned and are suitable for the purposes of using it for a
construction office. LESSEE may also allow the use of that portion of the parking lot
depicted in Exhibit A by the Nevada Department of Transportation for the purpose of
locating a construction management trailer. LESSEE’s use of the premises also includes
the right to utilize up to twenty parking spaces associated with the leased premises.
LESSEE shall also be entitled to utilize the training space within LESSOR’S building for
occasional meetings on a reserved basis.

ARTICLE VI
UTILITIES AND SERVICES

Section 6.01. Utilities. LESSOR shall pay for water, gas, heat, light, power,
telephone service, office trash, and all other services supplied to the Leased Premises for
LESSEE's use.

Section 6.02. Internet Service. LESSEE is to obtain its own internet service.

Section 6.03. Restroom Supplies and Maintenance. LESSEE shall be
responsible for stocking and cleaning the three restrooms depicted in pink on Exhibit A.

Section 6.04 Services to NDOT Trailer. LESSOR will be responsible for the cost
of providing electrical service to any trailer utilized by NDOT. LESSEE will be
responsible for the cost of providing water/sewer services to any such trailer

Section 6.05. Interruption of Service. In no event shall LESSOR be liable for an
interruption or failure in the supply of any utilities or services to the Leased Premises, not
within the control of LESSOR.

ARTICLE VII
CONDITION AND MAINTENANCE OF LEASED PREMISES

Section 7.01. Maintenance. LESSEE shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep
and maintain the Leased Premises and all improvements thereon including, without
limitation, parking areas and utility pipes associated with the leased premises (whether or
not of like nature to the structures now or hereafter on the Leased Premises) in good
order,

Page 4 of 13




condition, and repair, ordinary wear and damage by the elements excepted.

Section 7.02. Hazardous Wastes LESSOR warrants that no hazardous or toxic
materials exist on the Leased Premises. LESSEE agrees to comply with applicable
federal, state and local law dealing with hazardous or toxic material during its tenancy.
LESSEE's obligation to LESSOR, however, shall be limited to containing and disposing of
such materials as a result of LESSEE's operations during its use and occupancy of the
Leased Premises. LESSEE shall not be responsible to LESSOR for containment, cleanup,
or disposal of hazardous or toxic waste existing on the property prior to LESSEE's Lease
thereof or subsequent thereto if not resulting from LESSEE's operation. LESSOR will
indemnify, defend and hold LESSEE harmless from claims made against it by Third
parties for cleanup and remediation costs. These indemnities are intended to operate as
agreements pursuant to §107(e) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA). LESSEE will indemnify, defend and hold
LESSOR harmless from claims for and cost of remediation and cleanup resulting from
LESSEE's operations.

Section 7.03. Governmental Regulations. LESSEE shall, at LESSEE's sole
cost and expense, comply with all of the requirements of all federal, state, county,
municipal and other applicable governmental authorities, now in force, or which may
hereafter be in force, pertaining to the Leased Premises and shall faithfully observe in the
use of the Leased Premises all statutes, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, whether
federal, state, county, or municipal.

ARTICLE VHI
LIABILITY FOR DAMAGE, TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

Section 8.01. Loss and Damage. LESSOR shall not be liable for any damage to
property of LESSEE or others located on  the L.eased Premises or in any building, nor for
the loss of or damage to any property of LESSEE or others by theft or otherwise.
LESSOR shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from
any casualty or cause whatsoever, save and except for damage caused by LESSOR's
negligence or intentional acts or any damage which may be suffered as a result of
hazardous or toxic materials existing on the Leased Premises prior to the Effective Date of
this Lease. LESSOR shall not be liable for any such damage caused by other persons on
the Leased Premises, occupants of adjacent property, or the public. All property of
LESSEE kept or stored on the Leased Premises shall be so kept or stored at the risk of
LESSEE only, and LESSEE shall hold LESSOR harmless from and hereby waives any
claims arising out of damage to the same or damage to LESSEE's business, including
subrogation claims by LESSEE's insurance carrier, unless such damage shall be caused by
the willful act or gross neglect of LESSOR.

Page 5 of 13




Section 8.02. Taxes and Assessments. LESSOR will be responsible for Real
Property Taxes and any assessments on the property.

ARTICLE IX
INSURANCE

Section 9.01. Comprehensive Liability Insurance. Throughout the term of this
Lease, LESSEE shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force a policy or policies
of comprehensive liability insurance, including property damage insurance written by one
or more insurance companies licensed to do business in Nevada and with a Best’s rating of
no less than A-: VII that will insure LESSEE and name LESSOR as an additional insured
against liability for injury to persons and property and for the death of any person occurring
on or about the Leased premises. The liability under such insurance shall not be less than
One Million Dellars ( $1,000,000,00) for any one person injured or killed, not less than
One Million Doliars ($1,000,000.00) for any one accident, and not less than One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for property damage sustained in any one occurrence. LESSEE’s
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance in respect to LESSOR its officers, officials,
employees or volunteers. Any insurance maintained or self-insurance maintained by
LESSOR its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the LESSEE’s
insurance and shall not contribute to it. The insurance required under this Section may be
furnished through general policies covering all of LESSEE's operations, wherever located.
Any failure to comply with reporting requirements of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to LESSOR, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers. Coverage shall state
that the LESSEE’S insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.
LESSEE shall provide LESSOR with endorsements or certificates evidencing such
policies.

Section 9.02. Worker's Compensation Insurance. LESSEE shall make
adequate provision for accident or injury to LESSEE's employees and shall at all times
during the Term and thereafter hold LESSOR harmless from all claims made by any person
by reason of any injury, disability, or death of any employee of LESSEE resulting from
LESSEE's operations. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against
LESSOR, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers for losses arising from the leased
premises

Section 9.03. Casualty Insurance. Throughout the Term of this Lease, LESSEE
shall maintain in full force on all structures on the Leased Premises a policy or policies of
fire and property damage insurance with standard extended-coverage endorsement, to the
extent of at least ninety percent (90%) of their insurable value. The proceeds from any

Page 6 of 13




such policy shall be used for the repair or replacement of the improvements so insured.

Section 9.04. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or
self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Lessor. At the option of
LESSOR, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate deductibles or self-insured retentions
as respects LESSOR, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers which LESSOR finds
objectionable; or LESSEE shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Section 9.05. Term of Coverage. Each insurance policy required by this clause
shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail,
return receipt requested, has been given to LESSOR. For failure of LESSEE to comply
with the insurance requirements, LESSOR may terminate this Agreement

ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 10.01. LESSOR Held Harmless for Damages. LESSEE hereby
waives any and all claims against LESSOR its officers, officials, employees and volunteers
for damage to any property or injury or death of any person on or about the Leased
Premises arising out of, connected with, or otherwise related to the use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises, by LESSEE, its agents, employees, or invitees, and from any cause other
than LESSOR's misconduct or negligence. LESSEE hereby agrees to indemnify, defend,
and hold LESSOR it officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from and
against all losses, liabilities, obligations, costs, expenses, and damages resuiting from any
claim, demand, or cause of action resulting from the use or occupancy of the Leased
Premises by LESSEE, its agents, employees, or invitees. LESSEE's indemnity obligation
shall include reasonable attorneys' fees, investigation costs and all other reasonable costs
and expenses incurred by LESSOR. The parties shall make every reasonable effort to
agree upon common counsel. However, if the interests of the parties diverge such that
common counsel cannot reasonably represent both parties fully and fairly, then LESSEE
shall not be obligated to pay for LESSOR's separate counsel. The provisions of this
Section shall survive the termination of this Lease with respect to any claim, demand, or
cause of action that is based on events occurring or circumstances existing during the term
of this Lease.

ARTICLE XI
SURRENDER

Page 7 of 13




Section 11.01. Surrender of Leased Premises. At the termination of this Lease,
or any renewal hereof, LESSEE shall surrender the Leased Premises in good condition,
reasonable wear and tear excepted, and shall surrender all keys for the Leased Premises to
LESSOR and shall inform LESSOR of all combinations on locks, safes, and/or vaults, if
any, on the Leased Premises. LESSEE during the last sixty (60) days of such term, may
remove all trade fixtures and any other installations, alterations, or improvements made
pursuant to Article V hereof, with the exception of the tenant improvements required by
Exhibit B, before surrendering the Leased Premises as aforesaid, and if such fixtures are
removed, shall repair any damage to the Leased Premises caused thereby. LESSEE's
obligation to observe and perform this covenant shail survive the expiration or other
termination of the Lease Term.

ARTICLE X11I
DESTRUCTION OF THE LEASED PREMISES

Section 12.01. Fire, Explosion or Qther Casualty. In the event the Leased
Premises are damaged by fire, explosion or other casualty LESSOR and LESSEE shall
meet to determine whether to continue the lease. If either party desires to end the
occupancy of the premises, the lease shall terminate immediately. The obligation to apply
the proceeds of casualty insurance to the repair or replacement of improvements made by
LESSEE shall survive the termination of the lease pursuant to this provision.

Section 12.02. Notice by LESSEE. LESSEE shall give immediate telephone or
personal notice to LESSOR in case of fire, casualty or accidents in the Leased Premises or
of any defects therein or in any fixtures or equipment and, within twenty-four (24) hours,
shall confirm such notice in writing.

ARTICLE XI11
DEFAULT

Section 13.01. Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following shall
constitute a material default and breach of this Lease:

1. Any failure by LESSEE to pay rent during any extension of the lease or to make any
other payment required to be made by LESSEE hereunder, where such failure
continues for sixty (60) days after written notice thereof by LESSOR to LESSEE;
provided, however, that any such notice shall be in licu of, and not in addition to,
any notice required under NRS Chapter 40, or any corresponding succeeding
law(s).

Page 8 of 13




2. The abandonment or vacation of the Leased Premises by LESSEE.

3. Any failure by LESSOR or LESSEE to observe and perform any other provision of
this Lease, where such failure continues for sixty (60) days (except where a
different period of time is specified in this Lease) after written notice by the
nonbreaching party to the other, provided, however that any such notice shall be in
lieu of, and not in addition to, any notice required under NRS Chapter 40 or any
corresponding succeeding law(s). Ifthe nature of such default is such that the same
cannot reasonably be cured within such sixty (60) day period, LESSOR or LESSEE
shall not be deemed to be in default if , within such period, the breaching party shall
commence such cure and thereafter diligently prosecute the same to completion.

4. (a) The making by LESSEE of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors;
(b) subject to the rights of a trustee or court in bankruptcy under Federal Bankruptcy
Laws, the filing by or against LESSEE of a petition to have LESSEE adjudged a
bankrupt or of a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to
bankrupicy (unless, in the case of a petition filed against LESSEE, the same is
dismissed within sixty (60) days); (¢) the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take
possession of substantially all of LESSEE's assets located at the Leased Premises or
of LESSEE's interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored to LESSEE
within thirty (30) days; or (d) the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of
substantially all of LESSEE's assets located at the Leased Premises or of LESSEE's
interest in this Lease, where such seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days.

Section 13.02 Right of Termination. In the event of any such default by either
party, then, in addition to any other remedies available to the non-breaching party at law or
in equity, the non-breaching party shall have the immediate option to terminate this Lease
and all rights of the non-breaching party hereunder by giving written notice of such
intention to terminate. Such termination shall be in addition to any legal or equitable
rights of the parties. '

Section 13.03. Right of Re-entry. In the event of any such default by LESSEE,
LESSOR shall also have the right, with or without terminating this Lease, to reenter the
Leased Premises and remove all persons and property from the Leased Premises. Such

property may be removed and stored in a public warehouse or elsewhere at.the cost of and
for the account of LESSEE and LESSEE's obligation hereunder.

ARTICLE XIV
WAIVER

Page 9 of 13




Section 14.01. No Continuing Waivers. The waiver by either party of any
breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a
continuing waiver of such term, covenant, or condition or any subsequent breach of the
same or any term, covenant, or condition herein contained, nor shall any custom, practice,
or course of dealing that may develop between LESSOR and LESSEE in the
administration of this Lease be construed to waive the right of either to insist upon
performance by the other in strict accordance with said terms.

ARTICLE XV
SUCCESSORS

Section 15.01. Successors. This Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective successors, assigns, legatees, designees, legal representative, ,
but neither LESSEE nor LESSOR shall assign or delegate this Lease or any of their or its
rights, interests or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other
party and any attempted or purported assignment or delegation without such consent shall
be void. This Lease is not intended, nor shall it be construed, to confer any enforceable
rights on any person who is not a party hereto.

Section 15.02. Transfer by LESSOR--Release. LESSOR, at any time and from
time to time, may make an assignment of its interest in this I.easc and, in the event of such
assignment and the assumption by the assignee of the covenants and agreements to be
performed by LESSOR herein, LESSOR and its successors and assigns (other than the
assignee of this Lease) shall be released from all liability hereunder.

ARTICLE XVI
REMEDIES CUMULATIVE

Section 16.01. Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies given to the
parties in this Lease herein arc distinct, separate and cumulative; and, unless specifically
provided otherwise herein, no one such remedy, whether or not exercised, shall be deemed
to be to the exclusion of others herein granted or given by law or in equity.

ARTICLE XVII
HOLDING OVER

Section 17.01. Holding Over. If, without prior written approval by LESSOR,
LESSEE holds possession of the Leased Premises after expiration of the extended term of
this Lease, LESSEE shall become a Tenant from month-to-month upon the terms herein
specified and at a rental amount of TWO THOUSAND TOW HUNDRED AND FIFTY
($2,250.00) per month. Said rent may be changed by LESSOR giving to LESSEE a Sixty

Page 10 of 13




(60} day notice changing said rent. Each party shall give the other notice at least (60) days
prior to the date of termination of such monthly tenancy of its intention to terminate such
tenancy.

ARTICLE XVIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.01. Amendments. No provision of this Lease may be changed,
modified, waived, discharged, or terminated, except by a written instrument executed and
delivered by the parties.

Section 18.02. Applicable Law; Jurisdiction. This Lease and all questions of
validity, construction, interpretation, performance and enforcement of the terms and
conditions of this Lease and any other obligation secured hereby shall be governed by the
applicable statutory and common law of the State of Nevada and the parties agree that any
proceedings with respect to the performance or enforcement of this Lease shall be brought
in a court of competent jurisdiction within the First Judicial District in the State of Nevada.

Section 18.03. Brokers. The parties acknowledge that neither party has retained
a broker to assist in bringing about the transactions provided for hereunder. The parties
agree to indemnify, defend and hold one another harmless from and against all claims for
brokerage commissions and finder fees arising by reason of this Lease.

Section 18.04. Captions. The captions, titles, headings and Section numbers
appearing in this Lease are for reference proposes only and shall in no way limit, define, or
otherwise affect the construction of this Lease.

Section 18.05. Complete Agreement. Except instruments incorporated herein
by reference and documents executed simultaneously herewith there are no written and/or
oral agreements between LESSOR and LESSEE additional to or different from this Lease,
and this T.ease supersedes and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements,
agreements, letters and understandings between LESSOR (or its agents, or representative)
and LESSEE with respect to the subject matter of this Lease. There are no representations
between LESSOR and LLESSEE other than those contained in this Lease, and all reliance
with respect to any representation is solely upon the representations contained in this
Lease. This Lease shall be construed in a fair and equitable manner and shall not be
construed against the party by whom it was drafted.

Section 18.06. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in any number of
counterparts, or by different parties in different counterparts, each of which shall be

Page 11 of 13




deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument,
and in making proof hereof, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than
one such counterpart.

Section 18.07. Covenants. Whenever in this Lease any words of obligation or
duty are used in connection with either LESSOR or LESSEE, such words shall have the
same force and effect as though framed in the form of express covenants on the part of the
party obligated.

Section 18.08. Effectiveness. Submission of this instrument for examination or
execution by LESSEE does not constitute a reservation of or option to lease, and it is not
effective as a lease or otherwise until it has been executed and delivered by both LESSOR
and LESSEE.

Section 18.09. Sections. Articles and Sections mentioned by number only are
the respective Articles and Sections of this Lease as so numbered. Any headings
preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this Lease, and any table of
contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of
reference and shall not constitute a part of this Lease, nor shall they affect its meaning,
construct or effect.

Section 18.010. Force Majeure. Any covenants, conditions, provisions, or
agreements on the part of LESSOR to be performed shall not be deemed breached if
LESSOR is unable to furnish or perform the same by virtue of any cause whatsoever
beyond LESSOR’S control.

Section 18.011. No Partnership. The parties expressly agree and acknowledge
that LESSOR does not in any way or for any purpose become a principal or partner of
LESSEE in the conduct of its business or a joint venturer or a member of a joint enterprise
with LESSEE by reason of this Lease.

Section 18.012. Notices. All notices, requests, waivers, ap'provals, consents,
demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deposited
with the United States Postal Service, with all charges, fees and first-class postage prepaid,
properly addressed as follows:

If to LESSOR: Storey County
Attn: Pat Whitten, County Manager
P.O. Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

If to LESSEE: Ames Construction, Inc...

Page 12 of 13




3737 West 2100 South
West Valley City, Utah 84120

Section 18.013. Partial Invalidity. If any term, covenant, or condition of this
Lease or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease or the application of such term,
covenant, or condition to persons or circumstances, other than those as to which it is held
invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby; and each term, covenant, or
condition of this Lease shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 18.014. Time of Essence. It is expressly understood and agreed that
time is of the essence as to this Lease and all the terms, conditions, covenants and
provisions hereof. Whenever the time for performance of any act hereunder falls on a
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, such time shall be extended to the next business day.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the day and
year first above written.

LESSOR - LESSEE
By: Pat Whitten By:
Its: County Manager Its:

Page 13 of 13




® O

e

v Py

5& ﬁ m& @ﬁ ﬁﬂ w E% uﬁqﬂﬂwmmﬁaﬁahméﬂ@hc; ,P ﬂ,&iﬁ a»zuﬁ,._e-hHfuﬁqwm:ozux,:.z:ou..mzo-m.w»uﬁc&mm:m,

- OL=,L ~
g & Ny id _
£ S |
3 -
7 g
.W._ 3 iE
S 3
w m = "BUCAB|
H 5 B} 3 = asnna., DNUBIEEP O 1 0| 2 3] e Dy e s
5 B - = ol oiy o S
5B 5 g !
e I - 1R
SR RIEE TR R Y
E o0 & " 1 2 B 15 O L S = H
m m,w .,m Ei Z = WOt AR 81 1 RID: i sy
£} G228 ] 0190 u ] 3015 2 B [0 4O S
E irs Ms El1 1
5| 12885 = e
o B3ai - —
| Ry B ANISTT VR S3LON 13306
: el B NIV A
i35 @
Faoye adt; doy wsap o H Beez K r.m | T i
2 =| le== i 5
= 3] (223 m 5 ASIBA B LD OUIOZ L OO 8 jim SI0eES 4y a
H 4 e ] SAB BY] 1 SIGE0GE LT 12
m 51 5% £3 K Ly 07 P S1E KK Yo TRgea 21 89 s BTRLL 7]
i o N H i
2 = U2 G [103 Ylyis DAL ASUR 40 JSNUE 1L
W E . 1 s3I0 _Smﬁ_a
£ =l

L
R

_Hﬂ.::_.mwu Aa,

~Hideoys
Bug
oy Sujuie)

£9UE s3I 2

RARNS

|

F— 20—




W

Tenant Improvements to 1705 Peru Drive

Header for Accordion Air Wall.

County Side Drop Down Sprinklers

County Side T-bar ceiling 2 x 4 9’ height (drop ceiling)

Fire Department Curtition Accordion Wall VL-8 System 39’ x 9" maximum
acoustic absorption (STC-40) and carpet cover material

Trailer electric

County Side Electric

County Side HVAC

Fire Department Blinds

Fire Department Walls and Doors

EXHBIT B




3

mh\om\mo.m L/L0/£0 POISOd um;oEEm a_.:ztoo_w@ _,m
A810]S "SUBI9JOA O} PopIeme 3 ||IM: sjutod 83
Jo uoneoyia) suoleladQ pue sssusiemy gjel oﬁs_ n _Emum ucm

Jjo Eﬁm 10 YeAN ‘UonED ,,_Emo odD mo_u.m.n ,
SOV ‘Oipsweled 9lels EPRASN 10 dipaweled u@mﬁ
B SB uoneoyuso jusuno EmE>o_n_Eo Jo1eadk:
$.JOALIQ BPRASN g SSE|) [eloJatuwo)) "ueljos|es.
19ALI] BPRASN. G SSE|D [EI0ISWIOY PlleA B mwmmmoa *
uey} Jejesib 10 0} jenbe uonisod e uj Aq pefojdwe Ajusiingeq |
lajsuel) jeiaie| 1oy} syueoddy mc:w&. |[oyoa|y/Brig pue uoljeuluexs .
UpesH |eoipapy e uodn JuabuRUOD.-8q ||IM siayo gol jeul "MalAiei

coEmoa 10 Buhy- umﬁmoom aq j0U |im s91doo pexej pue pojlew-3
= "Jood Jueolidde Joy g/0€/90 Pue a4y jeniulJoj G1/9L/E0 U0 "W d 00
£ ey $601n0saY. UBINK 8L Ul Paaleosl-aq jsnli suojeoydde:
[euiBuO “xdse'sqol/Bio b::ook.:oum ‘MMM e IO &:os sseuIsng -
jeuuou Buunp epeas ‘AllD elUIBIIA '199JiS g UINOg 9¢:'asnoypnod

an

uoljels aul) pue.snjesedde: EmEa_:a.m 40 gouByeiEW pUE mtotm
‘BNdsal PUE [ES)EW SNopIEZEY ‘SIUSPIDo. JeinoIYaA ‘[edipauw ‘aly

ul ﬁma_o_tma pue esiAladns ‘Uonosiip-iepun jey] suonisod Jaaled
awn-|in} ede asay | '1OLISI UoOSl0Id 14 AjunoD Aai018 2y Ag
peydesse Buieg ele (peouBApY/AIEIpaULBI) LINTLeIYBuend Jolueg:

...u_u_.er zo_._.om._.omm mm__u_ tz:Ou.»mtO...m
: :oon Eﬂ:.unw ﬂ:« EE _aa.:_v auw ..n.__-..._

do siajsuely jesajey
ONLLSOd SOr

- §40IyD) 9J14 B pue uoy eolidde au 10 uoneneas uodn paseq ag [jim |- J0
JOIND il B P el A Hent poseq a9 Iik [ .80 4. 3| UONONNSUGD Sy, "9SED| B JO ULISY Yuow ZZ [eniul ay) Bunnp

oy} UI'palene| 9210 se0inosay wewnH Alunoy A2101S oy} je-ajgelieae. |
ale uonduosap gol |iny e:pue suoneolddy:1ys paubisse ue uo. |

.mam ‘v yote ._._._o:mu_._n:n_ 0 mumn_

‘BpeasN _3_0 BubaA U1 18208 9 'S
.v_._m_o Aunog ay) e ajqeleAe ale ‘ases) umwoaoa ay}
UONELLIOU JaUMNS "WI'e %0[D, 0080l 129102 ‘Uolep
mwmmﬂ sy oyul Bupsug Jo Ajeidoid ayj uo Bulesy oljgnd e
A810)S jO SIBUOISSILILOD Ajunog Jo paeog syl -ongnd auy
s 8y Jayo 181y 0} asodoid Jou saop Aunog Aeiolg Yuow
‘ 1O Junowre jejual e Joj SYIUOW Z| [RUCHIPPE UE 10} "ou} ‘Uoj
.o:.:mcoo s8lUY Jo Jsenbal sy Je pezuoyne | 8ses) 9} JO UOISUSIXd Uy
aska| ay] Jo uoieuius) ay} uodn Ajuno) Aslog jo Auadoid ayy W08 M
_._oE__s S)uswianosdil] JUeus) Ul 000'9SS$ bﬂmE_xEQam uozhwco%oﬁ painbal

uom._msowcmmoc un___BEm.._‘_.oc_ co_uo:bwcoo mmE<otmEmo _mEmzuc_
? jef m£ Ul BpEASN ‘UoLBDOIN ‘@ALQ nIdd G0/ 18 Pajesoc) uiog 0]
0900} u._m_,_cm‘owh leuonppe Ug pue Buippng sy ul 9deds Jueoea
Hmm aienbs yeo| Aloyewnxosdde sses| O 'sesodaid Ajunogd >m5~w 1ey; us

ozo: mmmm iqm uopoeg snielg pesiney mvm>mz 0} Juensing

;mmmozn_ >._.z_._00 u_O mw<m..._ n_mwO&Omn_ u_O mo_._.oz

Buipnpoul sapusblows :o:oﬁoa Auadoud pue oy 0} esuodsai sy} |

_bue oﬁmEEmn_tmEm Yo E_cmw 0} Jojsuel) [elae| 10} mco_ﬁo__aa,q

TN

mSN Eems_ Sou 9 amanmu_ .858_35 10 mﬁmo

EcoE Ba 08 m_.m v.o&

: ﬂmﬂoy e o« _m>oE9 :mm: So> mc_._n flim pue- mc____n_ 910z °| Aep eyl uo uibaq.

- |m.asBRIDUI SIY) ‘yuow Jed 0z'$ 1 eseasou) ‘pasodoid eyl -sedines
[eAOWR] yses 1oy EmEmmmcms_ B)SEAN WCS) S89} Uy aseasUl sy} Buissnosip jo
- esodind 8y} Jo} ‘gL0Z. ‘91 yose uo Bunasyy pieog peinpsyos Auenbar ayy
e mc:mm_._ t:m._. e m_.__>m: aq jm uoEw_n_ EmEoBEE_ jelsuscy :oz:mo ay .r.

w_‘om ow sEms_ En 00:4 ‘@snoyaqnio ucmm Bonsmm_
Buueap yuel .

B_Ew_n hzusm>o~_n_s= ._S_mzme zo>z<o

— =

9l-tl-g ‘9l-rg ‘91-92-2 ‘sejeq .._o_aoﬁ:n_
‘€8s |eloWo pue puey AW SSANLIM -

“Jusunnsul
m£ pajnogxa ‘pajoe. Amv:om._ma o} yolymio Jeysq
uodn Ayjus a4y 10 ! {(s)udsiad ayljusuniisul ayy..

m_m Jeyiuey/siy Ag yeyy pue Amw_vb__

:o.ﬁm_xm >mE e mcm*_ mc.n:ﬁﬂ:opo azis pue
‘Aolid “‘aous)sixe ayy ejebnsoaul B.ummﬂzoo_._m
T ade rok Auedoid sy o) apy Jes|o SMeo8lued
noA alojeq ‘Yo pauonone Huiag usi 8y} 0).J0IUSS
sualj ife 4o Buiked 10} ejgisuodses eq Aew jc.ane
.AOA ‘UOIONE ‘ByEIE Jappla isaubly.ey) ale noAj) - .,
el aoiunf g ag-Aeuw yo.pauonone Bureq 'us|| e}
I .ﬂmsﬂ.&mgm .mn_.“ ospe pinoys noA ‘Auadeid ey jo

_ m:_mn_ _.,Em ‘BPEASN J0 9l81S .bcnoo zw‘_o“w oo

V lEooom_ Aunod ay) Jo goujo sy Ul 's98) ‘g sunp

.. pey mbm>mz .b_o BIuIBIIA JO deu jeio o 05 uo
. ..:Bo;mwmm 3 ebuey ‘20150019 Ut 'y pue ‘g 'g $107
b LT ¢ 1SMO1|04, .mm pequos

t

w__so__E sB Umdaommv b.ﬁ:o_tmn alow.

-8p >._.z noo >m_w_0._.m jo AunoD ‘BpeABN 40
TOSIE PINOUS NOA JYRSHRS 0 . umgiow U pajenyis ) utelay o) paLisjal.puei gy




NRS 244.2833 Lease of building space or other real property that is less than 25,000 square feet.

1. The hoard of county commissioners may offer any county-owned building or any portion
thereof or any other real property for lease without complying with the provisions of NRS 244.2795,
244.281 and 244.283 if:

(a) The area of the building space or other real property is less than 25,000 square feet; and

(b} The board of county commissioners adopts a resolution stating that it is in the best interest
of the county to lease the property:

(1) Without offering the property to the public; and

(2) For less than the fair market value of the building space or other real property, if
applicable.

2. The board of county commissioners shali:

(a) Cause to be published at least once, in a newspaper qualified under chapter 238 of NRS that
is published in the county in which the county-owned building or portion thereof or the other real
property is located, a notice setting forth a description of the county-owned building or portion thereof
or the other real property proposed to be leased in such a manner as to identify it; and

(b} Hold a public hearing on the matter not less than 10 or more than 20 days after the date of
publication of the notice.

3. Alease of a county-owned building or any portion thereof or any other real property
pursuant to this section may be made on such terms and conditions as the board of county
commissioners deems proper. The duration of such a lease must not exceed 3 years and may include an
extension for not more than an additional 2 years.

(Added to NRS by 2011, 483)




Board of Commissioners of Storey County Fire

Protection District
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 16- 425 establishing a Capital
Projects Fund for the Storey County Fire Protection District

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 16- 425 establishing a Capital
Projects Fund For the Storey County Fire Protection District and authorize the Chairman to

sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary. A capital projects fund is a fund created to account for resources used for the
acquisition or construction of designated capital assets by a governmental unit except those
financed by proprietary or trust funds. NRS 354.4995. Under the Local Government
Budget and Finance Act such funds must be established by resolution setting forth

The object or purpose of the fund

The resources to be used to establish the fund

The sources from which the fund will be replenished

The method for controlling expenses and establishing revenues of the fund

The method by which a determination will be made as to whether the balance, reserve or
retained earnings of the fund are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purpose of the
fund
See NRS 354.612

5, Supporting materials: Proposed Resolution 16-42% and NRS 354.612

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney




8. Reviewed by:
Department Head

%unty Manager

9, Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Department Name: Storey County Water and Sewer System

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.




RESOLUTION NO 16-

RESOLUTION Establishing the Capital Projects Fund

WHEREAS, The Storey County Fire Protection District (District) is a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada with the authority to create funds

pursuant to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners (Board) of the District
desire to create a fund to account for resources used for the acquisition or
construction of designated capital assets other than those financed by proprietary or

trust funds, the Capital Projects Fund; and

WHEREAS, The Board intends to transfer the funds received by the
District as the result of the dissolution of the Storey County 473 Sierra Forest Fire
Prevention District and which are identified in the 2015 Annual Audit Report as an
unanticipated increase in the ending fund balance of the District’s general fund and
monies paid to the District as a result of providing resources pursuant to mutual aid

agreements as the source of the resources to be deposited in the fund; and

WHEREAS, The Board intends to replenish the resources in the fund
through the results of providing resources pursuant to mutual aid agreements and

audited higher than anticipated year end fund balances for the District; and
WHEREAS, The short term and long term plan for expenditures from
the fund is to utilize the money in the fund to purchase capital assets for the benefit

of the fire-fighting and fire-prevention efforts of the District; and




WHEREAS, The Board intends to control the expenses of the fund
through a voucher control system run through the Storey County Comptroller’s
Office, which office will audit claims made for payments from the fund. Claims
approved for payment will be forwarded to the Storey County Treasurer for
payment and to the Board of Fire Commissioners for review; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners will annually review
the fund during the budget cycle to determine whether the balance, reserve or

retained earnings of the fund are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purpose

of the fund and to replenish the fund; and
NOW THEREFORE, Be it hereby resolved by the Board of Fire

Commissioners of the Storey County Fire Protection District that a Capital Projects
Fund be established within the funds of the Storey County Fire Protection District
for the purpose of acquiring and constructing of capital assets other than those

financed by proprietary or trust funds.

ADOPTED this day of , 2016.

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF
STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regularagenda [ X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consider approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Nevada Department of
Taxation and Nevada Tax Commission to authorize Storey County Officials to review
records of Department of Taxation to determine whether there has been a proper reporting
of transactions subject to sales and use taxes within Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between Storey
County, the Nevada Department of Taxation and the Nevada Tax Commission allowing
Storey County Officials to review the records of the Department of Taxation and authorize
the chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Storey County has requested access to the confidential records of the Nevada
Department of Taxation to determine if transactions occurring in Storey County subject to
sales and use taxes are being properly reported to the Department of Taxation. This
authorization is intended to address the ongoing issue related to the reporting of these
transactions by zip codes. The Memorandum of Understanding will allow County officials
to review the records of the Department of Taxation for a period of two years.

S. Supporting materials: Memorandum of Understanding

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Storey County Water and Sewer System

@ County Manager Other agency review:

13




9, Board action:
[1 Approved [
[

Approved with Modifications
(] Denied

Continued

Agenda Item No.




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN

STATE OF NEVADA, THROUGH THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION AND
NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

AND
STOREY COUNTY, THROUGH THE STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION

The State of Nevada, through the Nevada Tax Commission (hereinafter
Commission) and Nevada Department of Taxation (hereinafter Department) and Storey
County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, through the Storey County
Commission, enter into this Memorandum of Understanding as of the date set forth
below. The parties seek to identify areas in which they will assist each other to ensure
maximum efficiency and benefit to the State, County and the public, and to minimize
any duplication of effort by either party.

WHEREAS, NRS 243.335 delineates the creation and boundaries of Storey County
within this State;

WHEREAS, the Storey County Commission is the governing body of Storey County;

WHEREAS, Storey County seeks to ensure that tax revenue generated within the County
is properly allocated:;

WHEREAS, NRS 360.200 allows the Department to exercise general supervision and
control over the entire revenue system of the State:

WHEREAS, NRS 360.120 provides that the Commission is the head of the Department;

WHEREAS, NRS 360.255(1) provides that the records and files of the Department
concerning the administration or collection of any tax, fee, assessment or other amount
required by law to be collected are confidential and privileged; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 360.255(2)(f) provides that the records and files of the Department
concerning the administration and collection of any tax, fee, assessment or other
amount required by law to be collected are not confidential in cases of the exchange of
information pursuant to an agreement between the Nevada Tax Commission and the
governing body of any county, city or town.

Page 1of 2




NOW THEREFORE the parties mutually agree to the following:

1. Upon written request received by the Executive Director of the
Department or such other person as the Executive Director designates, the Department
will allow the representatives of Storey County designated below to examine such
books, papers and records in the Department's possession as may pertain to the sales
and use tax filings submitted by businesses, suppliers and vendors doing business in
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center for the purpose of determining whether there has
been a proper reporting of taxable transactions in Storey County.

2. For purposes of this Memorandum the designated representatives who
may review records in the Department's possession are the Storey County Manager,
his Management Assistant, the Storey County Comptroller, his Management Assistant,
the Storey County Community Development Director, his Office Manager, the Storey
County Fire Marshall, the Storey County District Attorney, her Deputy, the Storey
County Cierk Treasurer, her Deputy, and Tom Gransbery, who has a professional
services contract with the County.

3. The County agrees to maintain, in accordance with applicable statutory
restrictions and confidentiality requirements, the confidentiality of information obtained
from the Department pursuant to this Memorandum.

4. This Memorandum of Understanding shall expire in two years unless the
parties mutually agree in writing to its extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of
Understanding as follows:

Nevada Department of Taxation Date Title
Nevada Tax Commission Date Title
Storey County Commission Date Title
APPROVED AS TO FORM

ANDREA NICHOLS

Senior Deputy Attorney General

Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 15, 2016 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda|] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Second reading of Ordinance No. 15-267 amending Storey County Code Title 8 Health and
Safety by adding chapter 8.01 Nuisances and providing a uniform process for abating all the
different nuisance complaints in the code. The amendment also changes the existing nuisance
procedures in other parts of the Code to be consistent with the new chapter and provides for other
properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 15-267.
3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: This ordinance creates a single hearing process for all the types of nuisances in
the code and amends the various sections to be consistent with the new hearing chapter.
{Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-267

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes MV\ L_ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
@E%Cbéparﬁnent Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e by

Agenda Item No. l‘T




4. Staff summary continued:

The Board held a public workshop during the meeting of November 3, 2015. Most of the
comments have been integrated into the text and the ordinance was approved for a first reading on
February 2, 2016. The public hearing was held on March 1, 2016 for the public, staff, and the
board to discuss the ordinance and to make any additional changes.

The specific issues that have been amended:

1. How the complaint process is initiated. The ordinance in section 8.01.030 requires the county
authorized inspector to receive a complaint to initiate the process. The words “written and signed”
have been added to the section. It has also been changed to allow county staff to be able to initiate
complaints.

2. The independent hearing officer. During the public hearing there was a preliminary
discussion about using a hearing board but the board went on to discuss using justice court or
municipal pro tem judges instead. The underlined changes in the ordinance will create that process
of using pro tem judges.

3. Civil penalties. During the public hearing there was also a discussion about the use of civil
penalties. Under NRS 244.360 and Storey County Code setion17.03.045 Abatement of public
nuisances the county has by resolution established civil penalties. The existing civil penalty code
section will be deleted and sections 8.01.060 Hearing procedures and 8.01.100 Civil penalty,
appeal will be added to keep the option of imposing civil fees available to the county

Areas that have not been changed.

There was public comment about formalizing the requirements for the authorized inspector. The
initial discussion was that the county did not want a code enforcement officer and preferred a more
informal process using county employees in the field. The filing of a criminal complaint would
only be initiated by the district attorney”’s office not the inspector. As for the hearing for a nuisance
that must be set by the clerk, it would be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

There were also comments asking for better definitions of what constitutes a nuisance. Section
8.01.010 contains the general legal descriptions of nuisance that are fairly simple but the
definitions of nuisances in section 8.08.010 were expanded in the ordinance draft for the first
reading.




Ordinance No. 15-267

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 8, Health and Safety by adding chapter 8.01
Nuisances, providing a uniform process for abating all the different nuisance complaints in the
code. The existing nuisance procedures in other parts of the Code in title 6, 8, 13, 15, and 17 are
amended to be consistent with the new chapter.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 8 Health and Safety by adding chapter
8.01 Nuisances and providing a uniform process for abating all the different nuisance
complaints in the code. The amendment also changes the existing nuisance procedures in
other parts of the Code to be consistent with the new chapter and provides for other
properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 8 Health and Safety is amended by adding the following:

Chapter 8.01
Nuisances
Sections
8.01.010 Declaration of nuisances.
8.01.020 Definitions.

8.01.030 Notice of violation.

8.01.040 Voluntary abatement.

8.01.050 Time limit for abatement.

8.01.060 Hearing procedures.

8.01.070 Appeal procedures.

8.01.080 Abatement by the county and recovery of costs.
8.01.090 Summary abatement.

8.01.100 Civil penalty, appeal

8.01.110 Criminal penalty.

8.01.010 Declaration of nuisances
In order to protect the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the county from
public nuisances, the board of county commissioners or its designee may order the owner of real

Draift 3-15-2016




property within the county to:

A. Repair, safeguard, or eliminate any dangerous structure or condition.

B. Clear debris, rubbish, refuse, litter, garbage, abandoned or junk vehicles or Junk
appliances which are not subject to the provisions of NRS chapter 459 Hazardous Materials.

C. Clear weeds and noxious plant growth.

D. Abate any condition or use that is declared a nuisance in this code.

E. Repair, clear, correct rectify, safeguard or eliminate any other public nuisance to protect
the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the county.

As an alternative fo the abatement of nuisances in the manner provided in this chapter, the
district attorney is authorized, pursuant to NRS 244.360(6) to bring all necessary civil actions on
behalf of the county to enjoin, abate or restrain the violation of the any ordinance of this county,
the violation of which is declared to be a public nuisance in the ordinance violated and to seek
damages for the cost of abatement of nuisances and the recovery of expenses and costs of suit
arising out of such actions.

8.01.020 Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
definitions apply.

Authorized inspector (inspector) means the person designated or authorized by this section to
enforce the provisions of the code dealing with nuisances.

A. The building official or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public nuisances
regulated by title 15, Buildings and Construction, chapter 15.20 Flood damage prevention and
title 13, Public Services when involving dangerous structures. The building official must use the
Code for Abatement of Dangerous Buildings to abate structures that are public nuisances.

B. The fire district chief or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public
nuisances regulated by the International Fire Code as amended

C. The planning director or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public
nuisances regulated by fitles 8 Health and Safety and 17 Zoning.

D. The sheriff or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public nuisances
regulated by title 6 Animals.

E. The public works director or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public
nuisances regulated by title 13 Public Services.

F. Any person designated as an authorized inspector may refer a complaint received by that
person, which may be more appropriately handled by another inspector, to the county manager
or his or her designee to be reassigned to an appropriate authorized inspector.

Dangerous structure or condition means a structure or condition that may cause injury to or
endanger the health, life, property or safety of the general public or the occupants, if any, of the
property on which the structure or condition is located. It includes any violation of any building,
electrical, housing, plumbing or safety code or the violation of an ordinance regulating public
health, welfare or safety which violation is designated a public nuisance in such ordinances.

Hearing officer means a person designated by the board of county commissioners to hear
matters that are declared nuisances under this code or to determine the propriety or amount of
civil penalties. The hearing officer may not be a county employee. The board may designate a
fustice court or municipal court pro tem from outside of the county as a hearing officer. The

Draft 3-15-2016




board may designate more than one hearing officer and if the board does, the hearing should be
must be alternated equally between the hearing officers by the clerk depending on their
availability. The board may by resolution set the compensation for the hearing officer.
Occupant means a legal entity that through the rights of ownership, rental, or residence has
the use and enjoyment of the subject real property for residential or commercial purposes.
Owner means the legal entity listed as the current owner as recorded in the official records of
the Storey County Recorder’s office

8.01.030 Notice of nuisance.

When the county’s authorized inspector receives a written and signed complaint about the
existence of a condition which is declared to be a public nuisance by any provision of this code
on property within the county, or if the inspector observes a public nuisance, the inspector must
personally deliver to the property owner, or send to the owner of the property at the mailing
address provided by the owner in the real property records of the county, a notice of the
existence of the conditions along with an order to abate the nuisance. If sent by mail, the notice
must be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.

The notice of nuisance must inform the owner of the following:

A. The street address, parcel number, or legal description sufficient to identify the property.

B. A description and pictures if available of the offending condition or conditions.

C. 4 statement of the action required to abate the nuisance and the date by which the
abatement must be completed.

D. A statement informing the owner that he may will be subject to civil or ard criminal
penalties or both for each day the nuisance is not abated after the date specified in the notice for
completing the abatement has passed.

E. A statement that the owner has a right to request a hearing before the hearing officer and
the right to an appeal of the hearing officer’s decision to the board of county commissioners.

The authorized inspector may alternatively refer the notice of nuisance to the district
attorney. The district attorney may commence a civil action 1o abate, remove and enjoin the
violation as a public nuisance or commence a criminal action in the manner provided by law. If
a civil or criminal matter is filed in court the procedure in this chapter no longer applies.

8.01.040 Voluntary abatement.

Upon service of the writien notice of nuisance, the owner of the property on which the
offending conditions exist has until the date set out in the notice of nuisance fo abate the
nuisance unless the inspector grants an extension of time in writing. If the nuisance has been
abated, the owner may request an inspection to verify the condition of the property. If the
applicable time limit in the notice has expired, the inspector must re-inspect the property. If the
nuisance has been abated, no further enforcement action may be taken. If the nuisance has not
been abated by the date set forth in the notice of nuisance and no hearing or appeal has been
requested, the inspector may refer the matter to the district attorney’s office for enforcement.

8.01.050 Time limit for abatement.
A. The owner has 30 calendar days from the date of personal service of the notice of nuisance
or from the deposit for mailing of the notice of nuisance to abate a nuisance. The inspector may

Draft 3-15-2016




extend the time for abatement in writing if the owner has made reasonable progress in
complying with the notice. unless If the condition of the property or structure is causing an
immediate danger to the public health, safety or welfare. Ifthere is an immediate danger to the
public health, safety or welfare the inspector has discretion to require immediate abatement or
abatement in a time period of less than 30 days.

B. The date for abatement set forth in the notice is tolled during the time the owner requests a
hearing until he receives a decision from the hearing officer and for the time taken to decide an
appeal if an appeal from the hearing officer’s decision is taken.

8.01.060 Hearing procedures.
A. If the owner of the property contests the notice of nuisance, the owner may request a

hearmg beﬁore a hearmg oﬁ?cer deszgnated by the board Q—“ke—bea#dmaihdeﬁfnafe—m&e—zﬁkan

heaf—lﬁf—eﬁ‘ieeiﬁs«by—#ke—eleﬂk—The hearmg must be requested by the owner in wrztmg wzthm 10

business days of service of the notice of nuisance and must be delivered to the county clerk. The
owner is required to post a deposit, in an amount set by resolution of the board, to cover the cost
of the hearing officer and the transcription of the hearing.

B. The county clerk must, within 10 business days of receiving the request for hearing, set a
hearing before the hearing officer. The hearing must be set within 30 days of the date of the
receipt of the request for the hearing.

C. At the hearing the inspector and the owner of the property must present evidence to prove
or disprove the facts set out in the notice of nuisance. The hearing is to be informal and the rules
of evidence used in court do not have to be followed. The inspector may ask for civil penalties to
be imposed by the hearing officer taking into account the gravity of the owners conduct. The civil
penalties start if the nuisance has not be abated on the date the in the notice that the nuisance
was fo be abated. The hearing officer must determine if there is a nuisance that must be abated
and may impose civil penalties or may reduce the amount of the civil penalty in consideration of
all relevant circumstances. The hearing officer must issue a written order within five working
days of the conclusion of the hearing. If the hearing officer determines there is a nuisance the
hearing officer must order the owner to abate the nuisance within 10 business days of service of
the order or within the number of days remaining in the original notice of nuisance, whichever is
longer. If the hearing officer determines there is no nuisance the deposit will be refunded.

D. The hearing conducted by the hearing officer must be recorded or reported. Any evidence
infroduced at the hearing must be retained in the custody of the county clerk.

8.01.070 Appeal procedures.

A. If the owner of the property disagrees with the decision of the hearing officer, the owner
may appeal to the board of county commissioners. The appeal must be requested in writing by
Jiling a written notice of appeal, within 10 working days of the service of the hearing officer’s
order, with the clerk of the board and payment of a filing fee set by resolution of the board of
H90-dellars. The clerk of the board must set the matter for a hearing at the next available
meeting of the board. The county clerk must provide for the transcription of the record made
before the hearing officer at the expense of the county. The clerk must provide the board with
transcribed record along with the evidentiary materials admitted by the hearing officer.

Draft 3-15-2016




B. At the appeal the board must review the record made in the hearing before the hearing
officer to see if there is substantial evidence to support the hearing officer’s decision. If the
board finds there is substantial evidence and agrees with the decision of the hearing officer that
there is a nuisance the board must order the owner to abate the nuisance within 10 business days
of their decision or within the number of days remaining on the original notice of nuisance,
whichever is longer.

8.01.080 Abatement by the county and recovery of costs.

A. The county may abate a nuisance that has been determined under this chapter at any time
10 days after the authorized inspector personally delivers to the property owner or sends the
owner of the praperty written notice of the estimated costs to abate the nuisance and any accrued
civil penalties, to the address provided by the owner in the real property records of the county,
by certified mail, return receipt requested,

B. The county may recover from the owner of the property on which a nuisance exists, the
amount expended to abate a nuisance, if the owner has not abated the nuisance within the time
required by the notice of nuisance, or after a hearing where the owner did not prevail and the
owner has not filed an appeal within the time specified, or the board has denied an appeal and
the owner has failed to abate the nuisance in the time specified,

C. The county, in addition to filing a civil suit or any other legal means, may make the
nuisance abatement expense a special assessment against the property with the nuisance and
may collect the special assessment according to state law.

8.01.090 Summary abatement.

The county may secure or summarily abate a dangerous structure or condition that the
building official, the fire chief, and the sheriff determine in a written document is an imminent
danger to the public health, safety and welfare.

A. Before taking action to secure or summarily abate the nuisance, the owner of the property
must be given notice that is hand delivered to the owner of the property or sent pre-paid by
United States mail or posted on the property. The notice must state that the owner may
challenge the action to secure or summarily abate the structure or condition and must provide a
telephone number and an address where the owner may obtain additional information about
abating the nuisance.

B. If the imminent danger will occur before the notice and an opportunity to challenge the
action can be provided, the county may summarily abate the structure or condition to the extent
necessary fo remove the imminent danger.

C. The owner of the property must be given written notice of the abatement after its
completion. The notice must state that the owner may seek judicial review and contain a
telephone number and an address where the owner may obtain additional information about
abating the nuisance.

8.01.100 Civil penalty, appeal.

A. An owner of property that fails to abate a nuisance by the date specified in the notice of
nuisance or as subsequently ordered by the hearing officer or the board, may be assessed a civil
penalty by the hearing officer erthe-board-of 100 dollars per day for each day the nuisance

Draft 3-15-2016




continues beyond the date specified in the notice or set by the hearing officer, whichever is later.

The cumulative civil penalties may not exceed three times the actual cost to abate, or, if the
county elects not to abate the nuisance, three times the estimated cost to abate the nuisance as
set forth in the estimate provided to the owner of the property pursuant to section 8.01. 080(4) or
ten five thousand dollars, whichever is greater.

—BHearing:

1. If the owner of the property disagrees with the decision of the hearing officer 1o impose
civil penalties, the owner may appeal to the board of county commissioners. The appeal must be
requested in writing by filing a written notice of appeal, within 10 working days of the service of
the hearing officer’s order, with the clerk of the board and payment of a filing fee of 100 dollars.
The clerk of the board shall set the matter for a hearing at the next available meeting of the
board. The county clerk shall provide for the transcription of the record made before the hearing
officer at the expense of the county. The clerk must provide the board with the transcribed
record along with copies of the evidentiary materials admitted by the hearing officer.

2. At the appeal the board must review the record made in the hearing before the hearing
officer to see if the decision of the hearing officer is arbitrary or capricious.

D. Collection of civil penalties.

If the decision of the hearing officer is not appealed and he determined that civil penalties in
any amount were appropriate or if the board upheld a decision of the hearing officer that civil
penaliies in any amount were appropriate, the civil penalties must by collected as allowed by
state law.

A decision by the county to enforce civil penalties does not limit or prohibit the prosecution of
the owner for a nuisance violation by criminal complaint.

Draft 3-15-2016




8.01.110 Criminal penalty.

In addition to any other civil remedies set forth in this chapter, the owner, occupant or agent
of any lot or premises within the county who permits or allows the existence of a public nuisance
as defined in this code, upon any lot or premises owned, occupied or controlled by them, or who
violates any provisions of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor. Each day of any violation
constitutes a separate offense.

SECTION H: Section 6.04.120 is amended as follows:

6.04.120 Noisy dogs--Nuisance abatement.

A. It shatt-be 1s unlawful for a dog owner to permit or allow a dog to habitually howl, or bark,
or in any other manner disturb the peace and quietude of the community, or of any person within
the community. Such conduct on the part of any dog is declared to be a public nuisance and shall
must be abated as-sueh.

- S50 - ‘.‘ ) - A B - i)

eii{hfs—seeﬁeﬁ— When the sherzjj‘ receives a complamt allegmg the existence of a publ ic nuisance
that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the allegations of the complaint, the sheriff must
Jollow the procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. It is lawful for any-sueh an officer
to enter upon any private property, to take any sueh dog causing a nuisance into custody and
impoundment, except that no dog shalt may be taken from any dwelling, house or other building.
SECTION III: Chapter 8.08, Refuse and Trash, is amended as follows:

Chapter 8.08

Refuse and Trash

Sections:

8.08.010 Definitions.
8.08.020 Unlawful deposit prohibited.
8.08.030 Nuisance declared.

8.08.040 Abatement——Reﬁpeﬂﬂbik%y—f&Fee&ts—

Draft 3-15-2016




8:08:146 Violation--Penalty.

8.08.010 Definitions.
For the purpose of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requites, the following
definitions apply:

Garbage means swill, offal or any accumulation of animal, vegetable or other matter

associated with the preparation, handling, consumption, storage or decay of plant or animal
matter including meats, fish, fowl, fruits, vegetable or dairy products, or the waste wrappers or
containers for these items, and any filthy or odoriferous objects.

Junk vehicle means any car, truck, trailer, recreational vehicle, boat or other vehicle, or
component parts thereef, that is unregistered, disassembled, wrecked or in disrepair.

Litter means rubbish which is non-decaying, decaying or solid and semi-solid wastes,
including but not limited to, both combustible and noncombustible wastes, such as paper, trash,
cardboard, waste material, tin cans, yard clippings, wood, glass, bedding, or debris, scrap
paving material, discarded appliances, discarded furniture, bedding, dry vegetation, weeds, dead
trees and branches, overgrown vegeltation and trees which may harbor insect or rodent
infestations or may become a fire hazard, piles of earth mixed with any of the above or any
Joreign object, including junk or abandoned vehicles, without regard to value.

Noxious plant growth means any accumulation of weeds or other harmful plants,_including
shrubs, sagebrush against fence lines or power poles, or weeds or plants over 6 feet in heicht
during fire season, or that create a danger to persons or animals or pose a fire hazard.

Person means and includes a natural person and any corporation, firm, partnership or any
other legal entity.

Rubbish means any litter, vegetable waste, debris, garbage, junk vehicles, or refuse.

8.08.020 Unlawful deposit prohibited.

A. Tt is unlawful in the county for a person to place, deposit or dump, or cause to be
accumulated, or cause to be placed, stored, deposited or dumped, any debris, garbage, refuse,
trash, junk vehicles, rubbish, or any nauseous or offensive matter in or upon any private property
with or without the consent of the owner, or in or #pon any public property other than property
designated or set aside for such purpose by the governing board or body having charge thereof.

B. Exemptions. The following are exempt from the provisions of this chapter:

{. Not more than rwo three unregistered junk vehicles parked or stored on a lot or parcel of
land that are contained within a building or screened from view from a public street, road or alley
by a 6-foor tail solid fence, wall or other similar structure.

2. Equipment and materials used for farming, ranching or keeping of livestock, appropriate
to the size and zoning of the parcel, including fencing, lumber, compost, gates, irrigation
equipment and materials, etc.

8.08.030 Nuisance declared.

All debris, garbage, trash, junk vehicles, rubbish, refuse, weeds, grasses and shrubbery, of any
and all kinds, accumulated or stored wpon any real property within the county are declared to be
nuisances and detrimental to the health, safety, economics, and general welfare of the people of

Drafi 3-15-2016




the county.

8.08.040 Abatement—Responsibilityfor-eosts:
It is unlawful for any person or persons to-suffer-es-permit the accumulation of any of the

things enumerated in-Seetion-8-08:026-of this chapter. When an authorized inspector receives a
complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and
confirms the allegations of the complazm the inspector must follow the procedures in chapter
8.01 to abate the nuisance. : E

".-—=-'.4.A by cupnny | rage oy 2 3 fra

Draft 3-15-2016




8.08.144 050 Violation--Penalty.

Any person who violates the provisions of this chapter shall- be-deemed is guilty of a

misdemeanor ands

Draft 3-15-2016

10




SECTION 1V: Title 13 is amended as follows:

13.76.030 Compliance required generally.

c] SVt L o a oW Al Pa PAL LS LWL

thereafter; the-further 7% maintenance or use of cesspools or other local means
disposal within the service area constitutes a public nuisance, and it skali-be /s unlawful for any
person to connect to, construct, install or provide, maintain, and use any other means of sewage
disposal from any dwelling place inside the service area except by connection to the public sewer
in the manner set forth in this division, provided the dwelling to be connected is within two
hundred feet of an existing public sewer. (Ord. 79 § 112, 1980)

13.88.020 Prohibited discharges--Designated.

Ne-personshall 4 person may rot discharge or cause to be discharged any of the folowing
described waters or wastes to any public sewer:

A. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil, other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas;

B. Any water or waste containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient
quantity, either single or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage
treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create
any hazard in the receiving waters of the sewage treatment plant, including but not limited to
cyanides in excess of two milligrams as CN in the wastes as discharged to the public sewer;

C. Any water or wastes having a pH lower than six or higher than nine, or having other
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment, and personnel
of the sewage works;

D. Solid or viscous substances in quantities of such size capable of causing obstruction to the
flow in sewers, or other interference with the proper operation of the sewage works such as, but
not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar,
asphalts, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair, {leshings,
entrails, paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders;

E. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, coppet, zinc, heavy metals, and similar
objectionable or toxic substances; or wastes exerting an excessive chlorine requirement, to such
degree that any such material received in the composite sewage of the sewage treatment works
exceeds the limits established by the engineer for such materials;

F. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit;

G. Any water or waste containing fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether emulsified or not, in
excess of one hundred milligrams per liter or containing substances which may solidify or
become viscous at temperatures between thirty-two and one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit;

H. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. The installation and operation of any
garbage grinder equipped with a motor of three-fourths horsepower or greater shall be subject to
the review and approval of the board;

L. Any water or waste containing phenols or other taste-producing or odor-producing
substances, in such concentrations exceeding limits which may be established by the engineer as
necessary, after treatment of the composite sewage, to meet the requirements of the state, federal,
or other public agencies having jurisdiction for such discharge to the receiving waters;

J. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half life or concentration as may exceed limits

Draft 3-15-2016

11




established by the engineer in compliance with applicable state or federal regulations;

K. Materials whieh #ar exert or cause:

1. Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids (such as, but not limited to Fullers
earth, lime slurries, and lime residues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to sodium
chloride and sodium sulfate),

2. Excessive discoloration (such as, but not limited to dye wastes and vegetable tanning
solutions,

3. Unusual BOD, chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements in such quantities as
to constitute a significant load on the sewage treatment works,

4. Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes constituting "slugs";

L. Water or waste containing substances which are not amenable to treatment or reduction by
the sewage treatment process employed, or are amenable to treatment only to such degree that
the sewage treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies having
jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters. (Ord. 79 § 702, 1980)

13.88.030 Prohibited discharges--Control measures.

A. If any waters or wastes are discharged or wasted or are proposed to be discharged or
wasted, to the public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics
enumerated in Ssection 13.88.020 of this chapter, and which in the judgment of the engineer,
may have a deleterious effect upon the sewage works, processes, equipment, or receiving waters,
or which otherwise create a hazard to life of~ constitute a public nuisance, the engineer may:

1. Reject the wastes;

2. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public sewers;

3. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge;

4. Require payment to cover the added cost of handling and treating the wastes not covered
by existing taxes or sewer charges under the provisions of Ssection 13.108.010 of this division.

B. If the engineer permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, the design and
installation of the plant and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the
engineer, and subject to the requirements of all applicable codes, ordinances and laws.

C. When the authorized inspector finds a public nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the
existence of a nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the allegations of the
complaint, the inspector must follow the procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. (Ord.
79 § 703, 1980)

13.112.010 Nuisance designated.

The c¢Continued habitation of any building, or continued operation of any industrial facility in
violation of the provisions of this code divisien-orany-otherordinanee, or any rule or regulation
of the county is declared to be a public nuisance. When the authorized inspector finds a public
nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of
this chapter and confirms the allegations of the complaint, the inspector must follow the

procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. The-covnty-may-cause-proceedingsto-be

of sk viclation. (Ord 79 § 902, 1980)

Draft 3-15-2016

12




13.112.060 Disconnection of service--Abatement of nuisance.

During the period of sueh disconnection, habitation of sueh #4e premises by human beings
shalt-constitute /s a public nuisance, when the authorized inspector discovers the existence of a
public nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a
violation of this chapier and confirms the allegations of the complaint, the inspector must follow

z‘he procedures in chapter 8. 01 to abate Ihe nuisance. whefeupeﬂ—the—eemﬁ%ha}}-e&&se

(0rd 79 § 904 1980)
SECTION V: Chapter 15.20 is amended as follows:

15.20.180 Variance—Conditions.

A. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvements, and
other proposed new development to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous
to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level,
providing that the procedures of this article have been fully considered. As the lot size increases
beyond one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance increases.

B. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of "historic striuctures" {as-defined
#-Section15-20:040} upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not
preclude the structure’s continued designation as an historic structure and the variance is the
minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

C. Variances shalt ay not be issued within any mapped regulatory floodway if any increase
in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

D. Variances shall may only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the "minimurmn
necessary' considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. "Minimum necessary" means to afford
relief with a minimum of deviation from the requirements of this chapter. For example, in the
case of variances to an elevation requirement, this means the board StereyCeounty-commission
need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to whatever elevation the
applicant proposed, but only to that elevation which the board Sterey-County-commission
believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity if the local ordinance.

E. Variances shall may only be issued upon a;

1. Showing of good and sufficient cause;

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional "hardship"
tas-defined-in-Seection15:20.040) to the applicant;

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights,
additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance{as-defined
mSeetion15:26.640; "public safety/ nuisance™), cause fraud or victimization (as-defined-in
Seetion15:20:040) of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

F. Variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvement, and other
proposed new development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided
that the provisions of Ssections 15.20.170(A) through 15.20.180(E) are satisfied and that the

Draft 3-15-2016

13




structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood damages during the
base flood and does not result in additional threats to public safety and does not create a public
nuisance.

G. Upon consideration of all the factors of Ssection 15.20.380 and the purposes of this

chapter, the board Sterey-County-commission may attach such conditions to the granting of,
variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this chapter. (Ord. 184 (part), 2003)

15.20.290 Declaration of public nuisance.

Every new structure, building, {ill, excavation or development located or maintained within
any area of special flood hazard after date of first FIRM in violation of this ordinance is a public
nuisance per se. When the authorized inspector finds a public nuisance or receives a complaint
alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the
allegations of the complaint, the inspector may follow the procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate
the nuisance unless there is a request for a variance under section 15.20.180 or a request by the

inspector for more information under section 15.20.300. aad-may-be-abated;-prevented-or
restrained-by-action-ef this-pelitical subdivision: (Ord. 184 (part), 2003)

15.20.300 Abatement of violation.

Within thirty days of discovery of a violation of this chapter, the floodplain administrator
shall submit a report to the governing body which shall include al! information available to the
floodplain administrator which is pertinent to #%e saié violation. Within thirty days of receipt of
this report, the governing body shall either:

A. Take any necessary action to effect the abatement of such violation; or

B. Issue a variance to this ordinance in accordance with the provisions of herein; or

C. Order the owner of the property upon which the violation exists to provide whatever
additional information may be required for their determination. Such information must be
provided to the floodplain administrator within thirty days of such order, and he shall submit an
amended report to the floodplain board within twenty days. At their next regularly scheduled
public meeting, the governing body shall either order the abatement of said violation or they
shall grant a variance in accordance with the provisions of herein.

D. Submit to the administrator of Federal Insurance Administration a declaration for denial of
insurance, stating that the property is in violation of a cited statute or local law, regulation or
ordinance, pursuant to Section 1316 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 as amended.
(Ord. 184 (part), 2003)

SECTION VI: Title 17 is amended as follows:

17.03.040 Enforcement.

It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation, whether as a principal, agent, employee, or
otherwise, to construct, build, convert, alter, erect maintain a building, structure or any use of
property, equipment, or operation in violation of a provision of this title. Any violation of this

tltle 18 a public nulsa.nce and a mlsdemeanor offense ﬁbm&shable—by—a—ﬁne—e#m{—mere-thaa—eﬂe

T o) 51 A flyoa FROBER
CaSaRa—GoOHdd & ¥ I - »

e%by—beth—ﬁﬁe—er—m&pﬂseﬂmeﬁ% The followmg procedures apply to enforce the prov1510ns of

Draft 3-15-2016

14




this title:
A. If a violation of this title occurs, #4e authorized inspecior must follow the procedures in
chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance the-&i +delive invielat

{ } hecli e di on

B. The director may also refer notice of the violation to the district attorney who may
commence an action to abate, remove and enjoin the violation as a public nuisance or a criminal
action in the manner provided by law. A party is guilty of a separate offense for each and every
day the violation of this title, or the failure to comply with any order, is committed or otherwise
maintained.

C. The conviction and punishment of any person under this section will not relieve the person
from the responsibilities of correcting the nuisance. (Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

A @ o) 1y

oy = 3 ats)

17.84.180 Nuisance Ddeclared.
All signs not in compliance with the provisions of this chapter are declared to be nuisances
and detrimental to the health, safety, economics, and general welfare of the people of this county

Draft 3-15-2016

15




and may be abated under the provisions of chaprer & (/-Seetiont7:03-045. (Ord. No. 12-244,
§ I, 12-4-2012)

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2015.

Draft 3-15-2016

16




Vanessa Stephens

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Vanessa,

Pat Whitten

Friday, March 04, 2016 10:18 AM
Vanessa Stephens

Anne Langer; fourmorr@charter.net
FW: Draft Minutes 2/2/16

At our March 1% Commission meeting, Mark Phillips commented that his public record comments rendered at our
February 2 meeting regarding the nuisance ordinance were not available. This is due to delays in getting the draft
minutes of Feb 2 finished for approval by the Board. | commented that | would provide an excerpt of his comments
from the Feb 2 draft as it currently stands into the record on the March 1% meeting as well as in the agenda packet for
the next meeting this matter is scheduled te be heard, which | believe is March 15, 2016. Those comments follow
below. With the clear understanding that the February 2" minutes still have not been approved by the Commission,
please include this email into the records of both meetings as | have outlined above. Many thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
. Storey County

. {775} 847-0968 (Office)
(775} 721-7001 (Cell)
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

From: Kris Wilkison

Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 9:51 AM

To: Pat Whitten

Subject: Draft Minutes 2/2/16

Pat:

Here are the comments of Mark Phillips from the draft minutes of February 2, 2016

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: The ordinance should be more specific as to who can red-tag

a property or threaten a property owner with a lien or criminal penalty. This should be an appointed public
officer with oath and appointment on record to enable a person to verify the authority. The Public Works
Director, or his designee, is suggested as the inspector in the new ordinance. There should be public record of
the 30 days for appeal. Maybe an agenda item that the “clock has started ticking”. And 30 days later, an
acknowledgment that the nuisance has been remedied. Recently a property was red-tagged with no

opportunity for appeal.

Mr. Whitter: It should be noted the property mentioned was red-tagged as a safety hazard not as a public

nuisance.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: . 3115’, Mg Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder,

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

LDistrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

X Depa rent £ Department Name; Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action: |

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |5




Storey County Qtnmmunitp Debelopment
PBuginess

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

b Y icensing

To;

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 7, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the March 15, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

A
B.
C

MO ZErRSS

cCcl

X omEEe

. DESERT VALLEY DENTAL OF TRI, INC. — General / 420 USA Parkway TRI

WESTERN PARTITIONS, INC. - Contractor / 8300 SW Hunziker Road ~ Tigard, OR (contractor)

. ROLLING PLAINS CONSTRUCTION, INC. — Contractor / 12331 North Peoria St. ~ Henderson, CO

(fireproofing contractor)

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEVADA, LLL.C — Contractor / 3078 East Sunset Road ~ Las Vegas (elect cont.)
MEDIC ELECTRIC, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 612 ~ Sparks (residential contractor)

ERGOMAT, INC. - Contractor / 7469 Industrial Pkwy ~ Avon Lake, OH (installation of fatigue matting)
MARTIN HARRIS CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 3030 South Highland ~ Las Vegas
(contractor)

BORGES ARCHITECTURAL GROUP - Contractor / 1478 Stone Point Dr ~ Roseville, CA
(architectural)

COLOG, INC. - Contractor / 810 Quail Street ~ Lakewood, CO (geophysical/hydrophysical services)

ITEM WEST, LLC — Contractor / 9725 South 500 West ~ Sandy, UT (manufacturing solutions)

EDAX, INC. ~ Confractor / 91 McKee Drive ~ Mahwah, NJ (equipment manufacturing)

FRIENDLY PLUMBING, INC. — Contractor / 1744 C Street ~ Sparks (plumbing contractor)

. APOLLO SHEET METAL, INC. — Contractor / 1207 West Columbia ~ Kennewick, WA (mech. Cont.)

FUTURE ELECTRONICS, CORP.,, — Contractor / 237 Hymus Blvd ~ Pointe-Claire CANADA
(electronics distributor/installer)

ICG CONSTRUCTION, LLC — Contractor / 500 Ryland ~ Reno (concrete contractor)

GEOTEMPS, INC. — General / 970 Caughlin Xing ~ Reno (Staffing solutions)

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners® Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/15/16 Estimate of time required: 90 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required | ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Employees Association/AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter. This meeting
will commence promptly following the regularly scheduled public meeting of the Board of
County Commissioners.

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 54 of the Bargaining Agreement between the

Employer and the Union, the existing 2013-2016 Agreement is proposed by management to
the Board of Commissioners be modified as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: To be provided in closed-session.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_ (@ Department Head Department Name: Commuissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No. % 5)




